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Market.
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Operating costs:
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SERVICES AND OPERATIONS

EREME TSR B LSRR

No. of land documents delivered No. of searches of land registers:

for registration:

469,381 5,364,086 [Q]

(BBERS|) RCGRAME /it HIRKR) BEFAMBmERBERE
A hRBIEE IR Usage of e-Memorial Form:
No. of visits to online versions of —
the Street Index and New Territories >7Z E_@_lﬂ
Lot/Address Cross Reference Table: % Ell— o
—

4-I4-30 @ B MELBS I NEEFE [
aoMoa Streamlined the application o
C—1 procedure of “Property Alert”
5317
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Usage of IRIS Online Services:
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No. of visitors received and
participants of briefing sessions:
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RHETALSENTEREREIARTENAHE
No. of imaged copies and
photocopies of land records supplied:

767,866 &=
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No. of owners'
corporations registered:
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R )55 MESSAGE FROM THE LAND REGISTRAR

| am pleased to present the report of the Land Registry
Trading Fund for the financial year ending 31 March
2020.

The Hong Kong property market had turned sluggish
since mid 2019 because of the US-Mainland trade
tensions, the local social incidents and their impact
on our economic outlook. Trading activities further
slowed down in the first quarter of 2020 amid immense
uncertainties about how the Coronavirus Disease 2019
(COVID-19) pandemic and the resultant large-scale
monetary easing measures by the major central banks
would affect the economy and the market.

As compared to 2018/19, the total number of
documents registered and searches of land registers
decreased by 6.8% and 4.4% respectively. Our revenue
and profit registered a decrease of 12.1% to $452.3
million and 70.8% to $39.1 million respectively, mainly
due to a decrease in business volume of registration
of documents, copying and reports on title. The Land
Registry Trading Fund achieved a financial return on fixed
assets of 1.2% in 2019/20.

In the face of the developments of COVID-19 in

Hong Kong, the Government has taken multiple anti-
epidemic measures based on continuous assessment

¥ ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20
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of the situation since January 2020. To reduce the
risk of the spread of the virus in the community, we
implemented special work arrangement in line with the
Government’s measures from end January 2020. In spite
of the disruption caused by the necessary anti-epidemic
measures, we had endeavoured and managed to provide
full range of services, albeit on a limited scale, during the
period.

Notwithstanding the challenging economic environment
and the unprecedented threat of COVID-19, we remained
committed to enhancing our services for the public.

Since January 2019, we have provided a one-off
subscription option to subscribers of our Property Alert
service which is a smart tool for property owners to
stay vigilant of their properties at ease. Over 90% of
the service subscribers have chosen this convenient
subscription option which remains valid until a change
of property ownership. For continuous improvement,
we have further streamlined the application process by
removing the requirement for subscribers to provide the
Property Reference Number of the land register of the
property concerned since January 2020, making it more
convenient to subscribe to the service by simply providing
the relevant property address.

The e-Alert Service for authorized institutions (Als) under
the Banking Ordinance (Cap. 155) introduced in February
2017 is popular amongst the Als as the Service facilitates
them to manage their credit risks in mortgage lending
at ease. Since the launch of the e-Channel (Phase one)
in January 2019, Als can enjoy greater convenience and
security in submitting their applications for subscription
of service orders through the e-Channel website which
provides longer service hours online. The initiative is
well received and around 75% of the service orders in
2019/20 were submitted through the e-Channel. With
a view to bringing more benefits to the Als, we are
working vigorously for the delivery of Phase two of the
e-Channel which will enable online submission of other
service applications (e.g. transfer of service orders from
one branch account to another) and more user functions
(e.g. maintenance and enquiry of account information).
It is targeted to be implemented in the third quarter of
2020.

BB TiEMEEEES THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG
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R )55 MESSAGE FROM THE LAND REGISTRAR

We take pride that the e-Alert Service has won the
Silver Prize of the Departmental Service Enhancement
Award (Small Department Category) in the Civil Service
Outstanding Service Award Scheme 2019 organised
by the Civil Service Bureau biennially. The Service
facilitates the Hong Kong Monetary Authority in
discharging its supervisory role to strengthen Als' credit
risks management in mortgage lending and enhance
the stability of the banking system in Hong Kong. It
also enables Als to manage the credit risks associated
with mortgage lending more effectively and facilitates
property owners to detect mortgage fraud. Moreover,
the Service has generated a new source of income for the
Land Registry to make continuous service improvement.
The e-Alert Service is certainly a 4-win service initiative.

To enable early introduction of the land title registration
system in Hong Kong, we have been working closely
with key stakeholders to pursue the proposal of
implementing title registration on newly granted land
first ("new land first” proposal) through the Land Titles
Ordinance Steering Committee and the Land Titles
Ordinance Review Committee at which key stakeholders
were represented. We will continue to liaise intently
with them to address their concerns and reach consensus
on the major issues for implementing the “new land
first” proposal. We will also continue to engage them
to resolve issues regarding the mechanism of converting
existing land and properties to the land title registration
system.

Looking ahead, the outlook of the Hong Kong economy
will be influenced by the timing and speed of recovery
of the global economy, the US-Mainland economic and
trade relations as well as geopolitical tensions. To meet
the challenges, we will spare no effort to join hands with
our colleagues and partners for continuous improvement
of our services and development of new initiatives for
our customers.

Ms Doris CHEUNG, JP
Land Registrar
General Manager, Land Registry Trading Fund
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THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND

In August 1993, the Land Registry was established as
one of Hong Kong'’s first Trading Fund Departments. The
trading fund concept is an approach to public financing
designed to encourage greater focus on improving
services and responding to customer needs. The Land
Registrar is the General Manager of the Land Registry
Trading Fund.

Under the trading fund model, the Land Registry remains
a public agency but is responsible for its own finances
and must meet its expenditure from the income derived
from fees and charges for the services that it provides.
The Trading Fund may retain profits to invest for service
improvements. In particular, it has autonomy over
capital investment projects that will support its services
and has flexibility to redeploy staff to respond to the
service needs of customers.

The Trading Fund’'s Annual Report and the financial
statements certified by the Director of Audit must be
tabled in the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region each year.

¥ ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20
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BE - £ FEaRBEE VISION, MISSION, VALUES AND
FUNCTIONS

B R e, L

BAIBEATRE » FLEMEIRLT - To be the best in all that we do.

BIOIBED Our Mission e

O RRARPREBZSEN T {2 To ensure secure, customer friendly land registration
M E AR - and information services.

O RBEANDER  EREMBH {2 To develop our human resources, information
BERBIRE  BRAZTPREM technology and service environment so as to
B R EE R ensure improvement in service quality and value

to our customers.

O EBYE  RERBREEESESE {3 To advocate reform of Hong Kong's land
T Hb R AE o registration system through introduction of land

title registration system.

BMNE= Our Values
FEFE — UEHAREE RRTE Integrity — to customers, partners and colleagues,
FEPRIIERH - we observe the highest ethical
standards.

BREM — —#%TE - hEx=E- Excellence

we aim to excel in all that we do.

HEEE — BRAEENEEEFF K Respect — we show respect and trust to our
TYERHE - customers, partners and colleagues.

i

o

&

1B

i
|

HEP - TERHME  Learning

we learn constantly from each

NINRIEBEZBE - other, from our partners, customers
MEE  RUGRHE and comparable organisations
TR © elsewhere how to provide better

services to the community.

12 BBTiIMELEES THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG
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Our Value to Hong Kong

)
[

Around half of all Hong Kong families are registered
property owners.

Banks and financial institutions loaned about
HK$3,212 billion as at March 2020 against the
security of registered land and property.

Over five million searches of registered information
took place in 2019/20.

Over 100 Government departments and agencies
use the Land Registry’s information for purposes
ranging from planning studies to law enforcement.

Registered information traces back to 1844,
providing resources on the economic and social
history of Hong Kong.

Functions

The Land Registry’s main functions are to:

[0
[

administer a land registration system by maintaining
a land register and related land records under the
Land Registration Ordinance (Cap. 128) (LRO) and
its regulations;

provide the public with facilities for search of the
land register and other land records;

provide Government departments and agencies
with property information; and

process applications for incorporation of owners
under the Building Management Ordinance
(Cap. 344) (BMO).

¥ ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20
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ZEREHE STRUCTURE AND MANAGEMENT

TR AR B E (B =2020F3 A31H)
Organisation Chart of the Land Registry (as at 31 March 2020)

ROEMR
BRI AR S R
Deeds Registration &
Departmental

Services Branch

+ 3t B R AR R
Registry Manager

—
.

TR B &=
Land Registrar

EEREEN

Legal Services Branch

R

Financial Services Branch

BB T iEMESEE S THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG

= Re ]
Deputy Principal Solicitor

REE

Business Manager




= T AR 75 56
Registration Services
Division

& K& #B P9 AR 5 =B
Search & Departmental
Services Division

EENREF R
Management & Customer
Services Division

FREEMEITER
Title Registration
Operation Division

BB EEER
Information Technology
Management Division

EEE
General Support
Services Division

EREERD

Legal Services Division

B35 80

Financial Services Division

HEBRES
Project Development Division

+ s EE AR BEEE THE LAND REGISTRY AT A GLANCE

Bl T MR AR IR (FEARTS)
Deputy Registry Managers/
Registration Services

B T e R A 12 (& R HBPIARTE)
Deputy Registry Managers/
Search & Departmental Services

2+ MR AR (B R E P RES)
Deputy Registry Manager/
Management & Customer Services

2l L3 T AR A3 (ZERERTIT)

Deputy Registry Managers/Title Registration
AT CGREEE)

Chief Executive Officer/Title Registration

AR R TE
Senior Systems Managers

HPIEEWE
Departmental Secretary

= AL 26D

Senior Solicitors

BIE 538
Deputy Business Manager

B Tt M e AR (B A ER)
Deputy Registry Manager/
Project Development

38 ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20
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A FEMARTS A

Registration Services Division

Management Structure

> Headed by the Land Registrar, the Land Registry is

organised into three functional branches each led
by a directorate officer.

The departmental grade of Land Registration
Officer forms the backbone of the Land Registry
overseeing various operational functions and the
provision of public services.

(> The Land Registry is also supported by legal,

financial and IT professionals and general grades
staff.

Branch and Division

Deeds Registration and Departmental Services
Branch

Registration Services Division

{2 To provide services for registration of documents

affecting land under the LRO.

Search and Departmental Services Division

(> To provide search services; to handle applications

for registration of OCs; and to provide reports on
title to Government departments.

Management and Customer Services Division

(> To manage and develop the Land Registration
Officer grade; to plan and deliver customer services
and respond to customers’ needs; and to develop
human resources through training and development
programmes to meet the business needs of the
Land Registry.

A &R EBPI R ED

Search and Departmental

A BRRHTE R
Information Technology
Management Division

Services Division

BB T iEMESEE S THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG
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+ T EEEEEE THE LAND REGISTRY AT A GLANCE

Title Registration Operation Division

{23 To design operational processes, procedures and forms
for the Title Registration System (TRS); and to plan and
implement publicity and education programmes.

> To provide administrative support in the preparation
for the implementation of the TRS and secretariat
support to major committees concerning the Land
Titles Ordinance (Cap. 585) (LTO).

Information Technology Management Division

{3 To plan, develop, implement and manage IT
systems and services; and to provide IT support for
the department.

General Support Services Division

<> To plan, manage and review human resources,
office accommodation and administrative systems;
and to provide general support services to the
department.

Legal Services Branch
Legal Services Division

{2 To provide legal advisory and support services
relating to the LRO, the BMO and the work of the
department.

(> To provide legal advisory and support services in the
preparation for the implementation of the LTO; to
conduct review of the enacted LTO; and to prepare
the legislative work for the introduction of the Land
Titles (Amendment) Bill (LT(A)B).

Financial Services Branch

Financial Services Division

{3 To prepare and control budgets and manage
financial accounts; to evaluate costing, fees and
charges; to review accounting procedures and
financial systems; and to manage departmental
supplies and stores.

Project Development Division

{3 To plan and implement new management
initiatives for improvement of service quality of the
department.

¥ ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20
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IR R B0 5 T B
WHO'’S WHO IN THE LAND REGISTRY

4\3( ;1 \2
THHEMEERREREE
The Land Registrar and Branch Heads
1. EREKRZLT P (LFEMREER) 3. FEBELE (RIEFEEAM)
Ms Doris CHEUNG, JP (Land Registrar) Mr Joseph HUI (Deputy Principal Solicitor)
2. ARAELL P (LHFEMESE) 4. BEELZL (EBKLRE)
Mrs Amy FONG, JP (Registry Manager) Ms Venelie POON (Business Manager)

18 &HBLTiMELEES THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG
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L AE M R 5P ARE R

Deeds Registration and Departmental Services Branch

1. ARRELZL P (LT MELE) 7. MERELLT (Bl ERLE)

Mrs Amy FONG, JP (Registry Manager) Mrs Cindy LAM (Deputy Registry Manager)
2. BIRELE (ERRFLE) 8. RERLLE (Bl LHMITMELE)

Mr Andrew MAK (Senior Systems Manager) Mr W. C. YUEN (Deputy Registry Manager)
3. RERuzt (B LHMEMELE) 9. BfEELL (BITEEMR)

Ms Alice LEUNG (Deputy Registry Manager) Miss Shirley KO (Chief Executive Officer)
4. wEBRE (BILHEMELE) 10. BEBELE (Bl LHEMERLRE)

Mr K. F. PANG (Deputy Registry Manager) Mr Kenneth POON (Deputy Registry Manager)
5. EE#Lt (FPIEERE) 1. RBBEE (B LHEMERLRE)

Ms Tina YAM (Departmental Secretary) Mr Francis WAN (Deputy Registry Manager)
6. ZBE L EITHMEETE) 12. EESLT (RRREGLE)

(B EIA2019F12 A9H) Ms Emily FOK (Senior Systems Manager)

Miss Kathy LAU (Deputy Registry Manager)
(With effect from 9 December 2019)
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EEBEER
Legal Services Branch
1. HEBEE (BlE/FEM) 4. FEHEXE (SE)
Mr Joseph HUI (Deputy Principal Solicitor) Mr Wesley LUK (Senior Solicitor)
2. BEELL (&) 5. BRANBRLZE (SHE6)
Ms Queenie KIU (Senior Solicitor) Miss Urania CHAN (Senior Solicitor)
3. ZTEELIT (SHE[) 6. BEHWBLL (SER)
Ms Shirley LEE (Senior Solicitor) Ms Louisa LIU (Senior Solicitor)
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MR
Financial Services Branch
1. BERELZLE (EBKE) 3. FFBLL (BAl-alEas)
Ms Venelie POON (Business Manager) Miss Fion LI (Deputy Registry Manager)

2. EXEDLZL (BIEBKE)
Ms Peggy WONG (Deputy Business Manager)
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P& 8 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The Land Registry strives to achieve the best in
corporate governance. To this end, we have established
performance standards based on the cornerstones of
accountability, integrity and transparency.

Accountability

The Land Registry is accountable to the Development
Bureau (DEVB) and the Financial Services and the
Treasury Bureau (FSTB) for its business and financial
performance respectively. We submit a medium range
corporate-cum-annual business plan to the two Bureaux
for approval each year. The corporate plan sets out the
blueprint for the department’s development in the next
five years, while the business plan serves as the basis
against which our annual performance is evaluated. We
meet regularly with the DEVB to review our business
performance. The DEVB also provides policy steer for
our work. In addition, we maintain regular liaison with
the FSTB, which monitors our financial performance.

Integrity

Under the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430) (TFO),
we have the flexibility to respond to service needs
and enhance operational efficiency through autonomy
in capital investment and the use of resources.
Underpinning this flexibility is the duty to uphold
integrity in discharging our responsibilities. All Land
Registry staff conduct daily business in a proper
manner in compliance with departmental guidelines
and the relevant Government rules and regulations.
The Registry Manager is the Ethics Officer of the Land
Registry overseeing integrity management work in the
department. Apart from organising training courses and
workshops, relevant guidelines and circulars on integrity
management are promulgated and re-circulated to staff
regularly to raise their awareness in this regard.
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Transparency

The Land Registry’s operation is also guided by the
principle of transparency. As provided under the TFO,
the Trading Fund’s annual report together with the
financial statements audited by the Director of Audit
is required to be tabled in the Legislative Council each
year. To help keep the public apprised of our work and
the situation in the property market, we publish statistics
on land registration and search on a monthly basis.

We maintain close contact with our customers of the
private and public sectors through our regular Customer
Liaison Group meetings.

PERFORMANCE PLEDGES

As part of our continuing commitment to improving
the quality and efficiency of services, we have been
conducting review of our performance pledges annually
since the establishment of the Trading Fund in 1993.

In 2019/20, we launched new performance pledges for
OC services regarding the registration of OC and supply
of copies of OC records.

\_

J

BELH20198MHEER + ABEH2020
F2AIAEMBFRE ILELEFR TE
ZH - AMERRHEERENR LR -
R RFEE2019/20F EH B ERIAA
AR BB AFEBIEE o [ | (a)FIiH
RERFEANREAFEMERRKIR - m
2020/21 FE S #FF2019/20F [ 89 AR
T5AGEE © 2020/21 F [E & AR 75 4 5E RLEY
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Given that public services were provided on a limited
scale under the special work arrangement in response
to COVID-19 from 3 February 2020 to the end of
the financial year, the overall performance of certain
individual services in 2019/20 could not meet the targets
pledged. Annex | (a) sets out the pledges and our actual
performance for the year. The performance pledges of
2019/20 are maintained for 2020/21. The performance
pledges for 2020/21 is at Annex | (b).
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ZFER CUSTOMER FEEDBACK

£2019/20F  » ABRFEBEFPRIEE  In 2019/20, the Land Registry received 66 commendations
4 - BP9 C BEEER K R{EME  and five suggestions through various channels, including
HETRREZEOEZTFRZ LA our customer service hotline, the Land Registry website,

= comment cards, letters and emails.

EFRERE
CUSTOMER SATISFACTION RATE

Atk
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2 BERATOEAAIBRR  ERNEBENES REFRMAETER100% °
Note: Figures in percentage for individual items may not add up to 100% due to rounding.

FE

Year

SN - BRI B R A BR R JE s = A4S There were also 41 complaints received by us or referred
HEM AT N 41815 - HFRA  to us by other Government offices, among which 18
18 RERT BN ARMBIEEE - FT  cases were outside our jurisdiction. All the suggestions
BESZMLFHOERECIENRERE and complaints were promptly addressed and fully

I o responded to.
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P EEH T CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP

The Land Registry attaches great importance to social
responsibility and strives to uphold a high standard of
corporate citizenship. Our commitment is demonstrated
through our efforts in eight main areas.

Serving the Community

Our staff have all along been encouraged to contribute
their own time to organise and participate in various
volunteer activities and community programmes. Since
2005, the Land Registry Volunteer Team has been
working with some ten other Government departments
to run a “Crossover Volunteer Project” programme. In
2019/20, the Volunteer Team organised 16 volunteer
activities for the elderly.
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In recognition of our sustained
efforts in serving the community,
the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service awarded the “Ten Years
Plus Caring Organisation” logo to

The Land Registry
E= b7

the Land Registry in January 2020.

@ARHNG

©OH TLDJ[—MN]

Caring for the Community
[t
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Participating in Charity Activities

We are committed to promoting charity activities by
encouraging staff and their families to participate in
charity events. In 2019/20, our staff participated in a
variety of charity events organised by the Community
Chest, including the Dress Casual Day, Love Teeth Day
and Skip Lunch Day.

Eliminating Discrimination and Promoting
Friendly Workplace

We strive to eliminate discrimination (including sex,
disability, family status and race) in employment and
promoting equal opportunities for all staff members.

In 2019/20, we had a total of 27 staff members with
disabilities, representing 4.4% of the total strength of
the Land Registry. We would provide technical aids,
where necessary for staff members with disabilities to
facilitate their performance of duties.

BB TiEMEEEES THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG
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We are also committed to providing barrier-free facilities
to members of the public. In this regard, we have
designated Access Officers and Assistant Access Officers
to provide assistance to members of the public with
disabilities visiting our offices and arranged relevant
seminars for our Access Officers, Assistant Access Officers
and venue staff members concerned. We also conducted
regular reviews of the accessibility of our facilities for
continuous improvement. Given our dedicated efforts to
provide barrier-free facilities for members of the public
with disabilities, our Customer Centre has been included
in the List of Barrier-free Companies/Organisations by the
Hong Kong Council of Social Services.

We support the Government's policy on gender
mainstreaming. The Departmental Secretary has been
designated as the Gender Focal Point who helps raise
awareness and understanding of gender-related issues
within the department.
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AN - BB RER L Besides, in support of the Government's
MBI RERMRIE breastfeeding friendly premises and workplace
MEEE - B2 B2 policies, we have provided a breastfeeding
RERHERIZIM T MR friendly environment for both female members
B T &R EERILE of the public whilst they are visiting our offices
B TIRH A EREGILH and female staff members who wish to continue
RIE - MtLHIENEESIHE B breastfeeding after returning to work. Internal

TES WALZEE TIREEDRME - guidelines have been formulated for observance by staff
members. Besides, lactation facilities are provided to our
female staff members.

RFAMEELELTSREBFENTEE  We also continue to provide placement opportunities

FISIEMAKEEEBENIEAK  for people in need through participating in the Social

BLEEEE | AEFEALIRME  Welfare Department’s Sunnyway Programme and the

EEHS o Civil Service Bureau's Internship Scheme for Students
with Disabilities.
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“In1 the past two months of l'nterns/l/p
in the Land Registry, we have
gaimed valuable work experience
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and kﬂow/ef{ge about the aperat/oﬂ
of the Government, which are very
Mseﬂt/ for our future Study and career

b

development,” said the interns.
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RMEBRBLSOERIRARMAE  For promoting job opportunities for the socially

B ZIRB AN R EFBEEMEMRAR disadvantaged groups, we continued to invite social

HEH  MREBBELENFERS - enterprises to bid for our office cleansing service contract
and catering service contract for our departmental
function during Christmas.
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Caring for Employees

As a caring employer, we strive to maintain a healthy
workforce. In 2019/20, we organised a total of 41
seminars/workshops for staff on relevant subjects,
including first aid, prevention of upper and lower limbs
disorders and musculoskeletal disorders, health talk on
respiratory diseases and smoking, health tips on the
use of computers, exercise and healthy lifestyle, stress
management, prevention and handling of workplace
violence, indoor air quality and occupational safety and
health. We also provided counseling services through
external specialists to assist staff facing work-related or
personal issues.

We also strive to provide a comfortable working
environment for our staff. In 2019/20, continued
efforts were made to improve the office environment by
internal office reshuffling and provision of multi-purpose
connecting space for staff so as to enhance interactions
and render flexibility for our staff to use the connecting
space for discussions in a conducive environment.

-
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AN - B PIAEEFBEPI Y - 38 - Besides, we continue to enhance staff awareness in
BE)EE C EBENE TREEMSIN  maintaining work-life balance and a healthy lifestyle
EE) MR E T RHERAYMFTIEM  through departmental publications, seminars, sports
VR ARERAEEFRMRE ©  events, interest classes and outings organised by the

Staff Recreation Club for staff and their family members.

( )
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REBREMAE IHSEE In recognition of our commitment to promoting a
HENE N HAEREERE smoke-free lifestyle among our staff, the Land Registry
REEGMAREE2019F was awarded the Silver Award of the Hong Kong
(BEEEBEAEDLERE] 2 Smoke-free Leading Company Awards 2019 organised
HRAZ o by the Hong Kong Council on Smoking and Health.
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The Land Registry is also
dedicated to promoting the
mental well-being of our
staff. In December 2019,
we signed the Mental Health
Workplace Charter. In
recognition of our efforts to
enhance mental health in
workplace, the Land Registry
has been commended as
“Mental Health Friendly
Organisation”.
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EBHRREE Promoting Green Management

NEEBEH N HBIRIREIE - WHIRE We continue to strive to promote green management

FISIEBEBAMB EEEFAERMREREL ©  and ensure that our business and daily operations are

BB ERE T A T 856 - conducted in an environmentally responsible manner. In
this regard, we have taken the following measures:

N - =

-

D BIERAREE - FIRRARIITE) (& set out an environmental policy with key areas for
FEEHE actions;

2y

o

D O RWMEBRREEES c UMEETE & promulgated green housekeeping guidelines for
<F observance by staff;

/!

-

T THRSERAZTETIRIREZ conducted regular environmental audit and surprise
MEEKE  FEIHEBIR checks at various offices to sustain the momentum
= in environmental protection;

2y

= =

: mEETIRADER] - TEWMA < continued our drive in 4-Rs (i.e. reduce, reuse,

ray
.o

Rl TRERE] R EREM] recycle and replace) and efficient use of energy
BIRIRILER - 308 RUE A se R A and resources;
BIR

O BRRFERBAEE EMNESE < expanded the scope of green procurement through
ERREFEUENY @ U RERE increasing the number of purchase items that
NEIF RS IS HEIUR R & contain environmentally friendly features and
% BREEERHEE RS requiring the office cleaning contractor to adopt a
FA7KFEETRIBFE number of green practices, including reduction of

water and energy consumption in their operation
as far as practicable;
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Ay
.o

N promoted green awareness among staff by
publicising messages on waste reduction and
recycling, energy conservation and anti-pollution
through departmental staff magazine;

Ay
s

implemented double-sided printing of land
document copies;

Ay
s

used recycled paper or the blank side of used
paper for printing and photocopying as far as
practicable;

Ay
.o

- installed lighting motion sensors in the officers’
rooms, where appropriate, to reduce energy
consumption;

- participated in the “Green Bottle Workplace”
programme organised by the Green Earth and
not providing bottled water when holding events/
activities/meetings at our offices;

Ay
.o

- incorporated the greening concept in office design
in order to improve the office environment and
indoor air quality, as well as promoted greenery
among staff; and

s
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- provided reusable tableware sets in office pantries
and reusable cutlery for staff members’ use in
departmental functions such as the Christmas
Party.

The Controlling Officer's Environmental Report 2019 with
detailed environmental performance is available on the
Land Registry website.
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Promoting Occupational Safety and Health
in the Workplace

We attach great importance to the occupational
safety and health of staff. Since 1997, we have set
up a departmental Safety Management Committee
to formulate and implement departmental policy
on occupational safety and health. We have
promulgated comprehensive guidelines and procedures
on occupational safety and provided our staff with
ergonomic office furniture and equipment to promote
occupational health.

To enhance staff awareness, we have made use of our
Staff Magazine to provide useful information and tips
on occupational safety and health on a regular basis.
Besides, regular inspections are conducted to ensure that
the workplace is free from safety hazards.

In addition, we have participated in the Indoor Air
Quality (IAQ) Certification Scheme organised by the
Environmental Protection Department since 2003 and all
our offices have achieved the “Good” Class under the
Scheme in 2019.
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Together, We Fight the Virus

To reduce the risk of the spread of the COVID-19 virus,
the Government announced on 28 January 2020 that
except for staff of the departments providing emergency
services and essential public services, all other employees
of the Government would work from home after the
Lunar New Year holidays. Hence, emergency closure
of the Land Registry offices was arranged from 29 to
31 January 2020. Thereafter, the Land Registry has
endeavoured and managed to provide full range of
services, albeit on a limited scale, and maintain full
service hours for delivering instruments for registration
under the special work arrangement.

We have also implemented various precautionary
measures, such as enhancing office cleansing/
disinfection, installing acrylic shielding screens at our
service counters, providing alcohol hand sanitizers and
sanitizing mats, as well as spacing out benches and
the queuing area in the Customer Centre. Besides,
customers were encouraged to conduct land searches
through the Land Registry online search service
(www.iris.gov.hk), use the drop-in box as much as possible
and visit our offices only if they require services urgently.

The Secretary for Development visited our Customer
Centre on 2 March 2020 and noted the implementation
of targeted measures to reduce social contact and
measures for infection control to protect the health and
safety of our staff as well as members of the public.

BB TiEMEEEES THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG



EHt = HF CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

ABTE2019BRE SRR LE
REEHN\BXEBRAEFEEMN
BT E AR AR N TR EGH L
BERITIRES - B TEHESIRS
NEEZEAEE -

To provide support for fighting COVID-19, a total
of eight clerical grades staff from the Land Registry
were temporarily deployed to the call centres of the
Department of Health and the Office of the Government
Chief Information Officer (OGCIO) so as to fortify the
enforcement of the quarantine orders, which was of
paramount importance to the containment of the virus.

AEFHREBREARSAERRER
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“We were responsible for inputting personal information
of inbound travellers into the database to facilitate the
health quarantine arrangements by the departments
concerned. Though working at backend, we were
glad to offer a helping hand in the fight against the
epidemic,” said our colleagues who were deployed to
the call centres of the OGCIO. Their relentless efforts
and devotion were highly appreciated.
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Public Education

The Land Registry had participated in the “Be a
Government Official for a Day” Programme 2019 -
Heads of Departments Edition under the Life Buddies
Mentoring Scheme, which was coordinated by the

Commission on Poverty.

The programme offered an

opportunity for selected secondary school students to
shadow a senior government official on the job for a

day to gain hands-on
experience of the
official’s work and a
better understanding
of the Government’s
operation.
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OFFICIAL for a Day

A student from Po Leung Kuk Wu
Chung College and another student
from Christian and Missionary Alliance
Sun Kei Secondary School were matched
to shadow the Land Registrar on 18
July 2019. The students showed
great interest in the work of the Land
Registrar as well as the services of the
Land Registry. A sharing session was

| also held on 23 August 2019 to serve
| as the conclusion of the Programme for

participants to share their takeaways
and reflections.
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As part of our public education activities, the Land
Registry has continued its efforts to introduce its services
and the land registration system in Hong Kong to the
school community by delivering presentations and
conducting guided tours to our Customer Centre for
secondary and tertiary students.

A visit to the Land Registry was arranged for the Law
and Administration students of the Hong Kong Institute
of Vocational Education (Tuen Mun) in July 2019.
Positive comments and feedback were received from the
students. They considered that the visit was a valuable
learning experience about our work as well as the land
records of the Land Registry.

¥ ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

39



P H £ CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

AYHEEFE R NEKR T HERER

ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬂ%uiAﬁﬁ%IW
FTEIASN  EREABK AR KL

}\#j#/_\*/\jj BIRBEI KB HER M

HE [ R eE AN AT — BI5ERRIE
Bl UXHEHSIFERMLERS - ED_EF'
SNEAEZNTHEZFHEIR MER
SMELSTENZELRIZ2IN ReER
R RGTEl — BISEERIER | - 2 HM(E

HEIMELE S RIR2019F5 A7 A E
AR ZETEAR - W tafiE
EEEER - FEMHE—2MRAE
R AL THE

ERSERTHEZEMEEEZAS - I
Tﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ@%ﬁmﬁﬁlﬁﬁ

HJMMF'W;%E% EEM ﬂl

Q*XM$%

In support of nurturing our younger generation, besides
partnering with the Junior Achievement Hong Kong for
the twelfth year to organise the Job Shadow Day, we
participated in the “Life Buddies Mentoring Scheme
— Job Tasting Programmes” launched by the Human
Resources Planning and Poverty Co-ordination Unit of
the Chief Secretary for Administration’s Private Office
to support upward mobility of youth. Students from
the Sing Yin Secondary School participating in the Job
Shadow Day, and students from the SKH Lam Woo
Memorial Secondary School joining the “Life Buddies
Mentoring Scheme — Job Tasting Programmes” were
guided by Land Registration Officers as their mentors to
work for one to two days in various work units in the
Land Registry in May and July 2019 respectively.

Students joining these programmes expressed that
through the programmes, they had a taste of real-life
work experience which was valuable and insightful to
them. They also commented that these programmes

were very useful and practical and had

broadened their exposure as well as
given them insights on their career
planning.
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Job Shadow Day 2019
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Life Buddies Mentoring
Scheme — Job Tasting
Programme

FUTURE PLAN

Green Management

We will continue to promote a “green office”
environment and explore opportunities for further
reducing consumption of energy and paper.

Public Education
We will continue with our public education activities to
raise public understanding of the services of the Land
Registry and the development of the land registration
system in Hong Kong.
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REGISTRATION OF LAND DOCUMENTS

Documents affecting land are delivered to our
Customer Centre at Queensway Government Offices for
registration.

In 2019/20, 469,381 land documents were delivered
for registration, representing a decrease of 6.8% when
compared with 2018/19.

EREMN LB E
NO. OF LAND DOCUMENTS DELIVERED FOR REGISTRATION
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Major types of documents received include sale and
purchase agreements (SPAs), assignments, mortgages/
legal charges and receipts/discharges/releases which
collectively accounted for 79% of all documents received
during the year.
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2019/20F E AR T8y + b ST 38 B
DISTRIBUTION OF LAND DOCUMENTS LODGED FOR REGISTRATION IN 2019/20

3,660..
Leases/Tenancy Agreements 1 08 32 5
0.8% —l 218 /AR I

73,140 ws.

Sale and Purchase Agreements

15.6%

92 ,948 HGHIEIS

Receipts/Discharges/Releases

19.8%
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Mortgages/Legal Charges

23. 1%

« 90,408

Others

20.59%

HRRY 94,900

Assignments

20.2%

Among the SPAs of all building units delivered for
registration in 2019/20, the number of SPAs of residential
units and its total consideration were 56,138 (+0.1%
from last year) and $508,866 million (-6.9% from last
year) respectively. The number of these agreements
is generally regarded as a key indicator of the level of
activity in the property market.
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ERAMNEERTEEANRBN SR
NO. AND CONSIDERATION OF SALE AND PURCHASE AGREEMENTS OF RESIDENTIAL UNITS

DELIVERED FOR REGISTRATION
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The statistics do not include sales of units under the Home Ownership Scheme, the Private Sector Participation Scheme and

the Tenants Purchase Scheme unless the premium of the unit concerned has been paid after the sale restriction period.
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The majority of the transactions in residential units in
2019/20 were within the consideration range of five
to ten million Hong Kong dollars. There was a notable
increase in transactions in 2019/20 with consideration of
more than five million Hong Kong dollars.
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BEHEIBNEERTEEAOTRE
NO. OF SALE & PURCHASE AGREEMENTS OF RESIDENTIAL UNITS BY RANGE OF CONSIDERATION

(=]
AN

No.

35,000
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TEDIE (AEBTT) Range of Consideration (HK$ million)
® 2017/18 ® 2018/19 ® 2019/20

S E 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
Range of Consideration

(B&%T) RENo. % TEINo. % =ZNo. %
(HK$ million)

N Less than 1 282 0.4 249 0.4 215 0.4
1E2DPR2 1 to less than 2 1,075 1.7 784 1.4 823 1.5
2E PR3 2 to less than 3 2,882 4.5 1,582 2.8 1,478 2.6
325 3 to less than 5 17,595 27.8 10,936 19.5 10,312 18.4
5Z/4F10 5 to less than 10 28,081 443 29,753 53.0 32,240 57.4
1024720 10 to less than 20 9,302 14.7 8,984 16.0 8,294 14.8
20230 20 to less than 30 2,190 3.5 1,936 3.5 1,228 2.2
308k A 30 or over 1,978 3.1 1,871 3.3 1,548 2.8
e Total 63,385 100.0 56,095 100.0 56,138 100.0

e BERIHEEDAIREE  EREENE D EHFEMAIGETER100% °
Note: Figures in percentage for individual items may not add up to 100% due to rounding.
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SEARCH SERVICES

Land records are kept by the Land Registry for the
purpose of providing an information platform on
property ownership to facilitate property transactions.

In 2019/20, the total number of searches of land
registers and supply of imaged copies and photocopies of
land records were 5,364,086 (-4.4% from previous year)
and 767,866 (-7.3% from previous year) respectively.

B+ B EMRBNRERI BERNTREERI TR HR
NO. OF SEARCHES OF LAND REGISTERS & IMAGED COPIES AND PHOTOCOPIES OF
LAND RECORDS SUPPLIED

T
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Searches of Land Registers

©® RHTIMAAHBMNEERERRIARFIR
Imaged Copies and Photocopies of Land Records Supplied
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The Land Registry is providing search services over the
internet via our IRIS Online Services at www.iris.gov.hk
seven days a week for 20 hours a day (from 7:30 a.m.
to 3:30 a.m. the next day). The public can conduct
searches on either an ad hoc or a subscription basis.
The number of subscribers increased by 32 (+2.3%) and
reached 1,416 during 2019/20. Currently, searches
conducted online constituted about 95% of the total
search volume. The remaining 5% were conducted over
the counter. Counter search service is available at our
Customer Centre in Queensway Government Offices
and the New Territories Search Offices (NTSOs) in Tai Po,
Yuen Long and Tsuen Wan.

BTt BEMRE

NO. OF SEARCHES OF LAND REGISTERS

SRR
No. of Searches
5,644,216 5,612,225
6,000,000 5379961 - - 5,364,086
5,046,806 . I
5,241,067 194,
4,893,606 , , 5,080,897
4,647,371
4,000,000
3,000,000
2,000,000
1,000,000
399,435 426,355 403,149 417,774 283,189
® @ @ e\.
0 FE
2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 vear
® &I Z 1 Counter searches ® &t Online searches @ A% Total
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The Land Registry publishes new editions of the Street
Index (SI) and the New Territories Lot/Address Cross
Reference Table (CRT) annually to help the public
correlate property addresses and building names with
lot numbers in the territory. To facilitate online search
services, online versions of the SI and the CRT are made
available for free browsing on the Land Registry website
or through the hyperlink on the IRIS Online Services.
Up to 31 March 2020, over 10,200 visits to the online
versions of the SI and the CRT released on 30 April 2019
were recorded.

OWNERS’ CORPORATION (0OCQ)
SERVICES

The Land Registry is responsible for registration of
OCs and provision of filing and search service for OC
records under the BMO. In 2019/20, 104 new OCs were
registered. The total number of OCs in the territory
reached 11,043.
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CUSTOMER SERVICES

The Management and Customer Services Division of
the Land Registry is dedicated to the planning and
coordination of customer services for promoting service
excellence to meet rising public aspirations. We make
use of various channels to liaise and communicate with
our customers for improving our services.

Liaison with Customers

Land Registry Joint Standing Committee

The Land Registry Joint Standing Committee, comprising
the Land Registrar, her senior management team and
representatives of the Law Society of Hong Kong,
meets regularly to discuss and exchange views on land
registration matters, the Land Registry’s services provided
to legal practitioners and preparation for implementation

R ZEBEKERERWMEI() - of the TRS. The membership of the Committee is at
Annex Il (a).
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Customer Liaison Groups

The Land Registry maintains regular liaison with
customers through two Customer Liaison Groups
(private and public sectors) to update customers on the
department’s latest initiatives, services and procedures,
to facilitate exchange of views on operational and service
delivery issues, and to respond to customers’ feedback.

A EPEE N (FLEHE)

Customer Liaison Group (Private Sector)

MERBE PR AR B R B AR
FBXHBERTIRHERE  REREE
PR &/ MER R B BIZK B BUF RBF A
LHE - ME )RR B R BRI R
111 (b) B2 (c)

The private sector group comprises representatives from
the legal community, professional bodies and trade
associations while the public sector group comprises
representatives from Government departments and
public bodies. The lists of membership of the private
sector and the public sector groups are at Annexes Il (b)
and (c) respectively.
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THE & AND
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Customer Liaison Group (Public Sector)
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Visits

The Land Registry continues to maintain close connection
with its overseas counterparts. In September 2019, Ms
Doris CHEUNG, the Land Registrar, Ms Alice LEUNG,
Deputy Registry Manager and Ms Eva LAU, Assistant
Registry Manager participated in the 46th Registrars
of Title Conference held in Sydney, Australia. The
Conference brought together Registrars and their
delegates from various overseas jurisdictions, which
provided a fruitful opportunity for the Conference
participants to exchange knowledge, initiatives and
best practices in service delivery as well as the latest
developments in title registration.
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£2019F5H15%17H » BlL# 7 Besides, Mrs Cindy LAM, Deputy Registry Manager and
BRAIEMEINEL TS MEMEEZE  Ms Shirley LEE, Senior Solicitor took part in the Land
ZEIHEFEERMNBEAEITAN2019  Registrars Development Officers Conference 2019 held
FILHAMERREREHFAEE  in Melbourne, Australia from 15 to 17 May 2019. The
ZlomgaEa252KkEBMNTEIMN  Conference was attended by 25 delegates from different
- FABMNEENRERLI - BBE states of Australia as well as New Zealand and Hong
HEARFRELG N i B BB BB Kong. It fostered communication and strengthened our
£ network with overseas land registries.

BESN - AR EE A BRI R AR R B R B
HEE o IR BES XM A RER)T
g B AR RENRKRENR2019F6 A
1ABBIEAAER » AR T MM FIR 2
B AE BRI Rl LT mER
TR BEHYEGZRE % - BMJ%  In addition, the Land Registry maintains a close
P2 B AR EFPRES L - AT relationship with its Mainland associates. A delegation
i 7R BT B WU AN S AT AR 7S o from the Department of Natural Resources of Jiangxi
Province led by Inspector Mr DENG You-lin
visited us on 14 June 2019. We briefed them
on the roles and functions of the Land Registry
and had a useful discussion with them on land
registration matters. A guided tour to the
Customer Centre on our deeds lodgement and
search services was also arranged.
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Communication Channels

Land Registry Circular Memoranda

In 2019/20, we issued two Land Registry Circular
Memoranda to update legal practitioners and customers
on our new product/services.

Land Registry News
Two electronic issues of the Land Registry News were
released in June and December 2019 respectively to keep
our customers updated on
the Land Registry’s initiatives,
services and activities.

HISTRY
AND REGISTRY
@TKE LAND o
-

Information Leaflets

‘
During the year, we updated ik
the information leaflets to \L/
. . : . B
provide latest information on i
our services. Property Al eti

i a0dré9 0% bt ¢
Press Releases =
We issue press releases from
time to time to announce the
Land Registry’s latest service updates and provide regular

statistics on land registration and search.

Annual Open Data Plan

Having regard to the Chief Executive's 2017 Policy

Address and the Smart City Blueprint for Hong Kong
announced in December
2017, we published our first
annual open data plan in
December 2018. The second
annual open data plan for
2020-22 was released in
December 2019. The plan
sets out datasets relating
to registration and search
services to be released via
the Public Sector Information
Portal in the following three
years for free public use.
The datasets provide raw
materials for technology
research and innovation.
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Customer Service Hotline

Our Customer Service Hotline supported by an Interactive
Voice Response System offers a whole range of
information through recorded messages and manned
operator service. A queuing service for specific service
help desks is also available. Through collaboration with
the Efficiency Office’s 1823 Call Centre, our hotline
enquiry service is provided 24 hours a day.

Land Registry Website
During the year, there were 8.1 million visits (63% in the
Chinese language and 37% in the English language) to
the Land Registry website.

Awards

The Secretary for the Civil Service’s
Commendation Award 2019

Congratulations to our Clerical Officer, Mr CHEUNG
Tak-chung, who was awarded “The Secretary for
the Civil Service’'s Commendation Award 2019" for
his consistently outstanding performance and firm
commitment towards customer service.
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The Ombudsman’s Awards 2019

Congratulations to our Land Registration Officer I, Ms
WONG Ka-man, Carmen, and Senior Clerical Officer,
Ms CHAN Kuen-kuen, Meibo, who were awarded
“The Ombudsman’s Awards 2019 for Officers of Public
Organisations” for their dedication in delivering high
standard of services and their professionalism in serving
customers.

Civil Service Outstanding Service Award Scheme
2019
The Land Registry was awarded the Silver Prize of
the Departmental Service Enhancement Award (Small
Department Category) in the Civil Service Outstanding
Service Award Scheme 2019 organised by the Civil
Service Bureau biennially by presenting the “e-Alert
Service for Authorized Institutions (Als)”.

s p—

B T

N 20195 ABEEEREEDHB

== Civil Service Outstanding Service Award Scheme 2019

Our commitment to promoting a culture
of quality service and pursuing continuous
service improvement has once again
won recognition. As the Secretary for
Development said in his Blog on 5 January
2020 entitled “Land Registry’s e-Alert
Service — A 4-win service initiative”, the
service is a 4-win initiative for the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority, Als, property
owners and the Land Registry.

Y = \
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ERB Manpower Developer Award
The Employees Retraining Board (ERB) launched the “ERB

EZFE ] RBEAAEIIKRE  Manpower Developer Award Scheme” (the Scheme) in

RIEEEZBRIENK
B URTIASTRE]
B - AEEBH2012F
ZHZETEIAK - —HE
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F3A318 KEBNE
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-3
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EWE B HEIE - BR TEME[2018/19
ZEJZ Mercury Excellence Awards | 2 [4F
IWEBRERI — BUTHE RIS | AR
LB BESEHEEE X
B (LACP)7835H)[2018 Vision Awards ]
ZENRIAFER — ™ MN BEREF
ARIHBRS8E -  HPREEZLES
Vision AwardsizBi=ikE * BIE J
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2009 to recognise organisations
which demonstrate outstanding
achievements in manpower training
and development as Manpower
Developers. The Land Registry
has been accredited “Manpower
Developer” since its participation in
the Scheme in 2012. Once again,
we were accredited “Manpower
Developer” for two consecutive
years from 1 April 2019 to 31
March 2021.

Awards for Land Registry Trading Fund (LRTF)
Annual Report 2017/18

The LRTF Annual Report 2017/18 won two international
awards. In addition to an Honors Award in the Mercury
Excellence Awards 2018/19 under the category of
“Annual Reports — Overall Presentation — Government
Agencies & Offices”, we achieved the Platinum Award of
the League of American Communications Professionals
(LACP) 2018 Vision Awards under the category of
“Print-Based Annual
Reports — Government
— City/State/National”.
We are proud to reach
the highest level of
the Vision Awards
with the recognition of
our pursuit for quality
production of the
annual report.
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DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS AND NEW
SERVICES

e-Memorial Form

The e-Memorial Form is an electronic template of the
memorial form provided by the Land Registry on our
homepage for online completion and printing to facilitate
users to prepare the memorials in a more speedy and
efficient way.

Two versions of the e-Memorial Form are available i.e.
a basic version and one with data import function.
Both versions have an auto-fill function enabling users
to retrieve property particulars by Property Reference
Numbers from the IRIS for reference when they are filling
in the memorial form. For users handling a series of
transactions or property projects with the same set of
basic information, the version with data import function
would be even more convenient as it enables the transfer
of relevant information from a computer spreadsheet to
multiple memorial forms simultaneously.

The usage of e-Memorial Form has been increasing
steadily and has accounted for over 72% of the total
number of memorials delivered with the instruments for
registration in 2019/20. The Land Registry will continue
to keep in view users’ feedback to identify room for
enhancements.
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e-Alert Service

Property Alert

Launched on 28 January 2019, Property Alert is an
affordable smart tool for all property owners to stay
vigilant of their properties at ease. It helps property
owners detect unexpected or suspicious instruments
delivered for registration against their properties early to
allow prompt follow-up actions and/or seek legal advice.

The Land Registry offers two subscription options.
Comparing to the 24-month subscription, the one-off
subscription option which remains valid until a change
of property ownership is most popular among the new
subscribers as it will obviate the need for property
owners to renew subscription. Over 90% of the orders
received have opted for one-off subscription. Besides,
the new channel of application by post (in addition to
application in person) has benefited owners of properties
in Hong Kong, in particular those residing overseas or
staying outside Hong Kong for extended periods of time.

For continuous improvement, the Land Registry has
streamlined the application procedure by removing the
mandatory requirement for property owners to provide
the Property Reference Number (PRN) of the land register
of the property concerned in the application form from
31 January 2020, making it more convenient to subscribe
to the service.

Since service rollout, a series of promotional activities
have been conducted including the launch of an
Announcement in the Public Interest (API) on various
television channels. The API has also been disseminated
via other channels including Government departments’

websites and facilities, video walls in

-

R public parks, etc.

< [PEEESIEEEN

Promotional video for Property Alert
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Briefing session delivered to
committee members at the
5th Executive Committee
Meeting under the 35th
Term of the Heung Yee Kuk

In addition to publicizing through promotional letters and
emails to major stakeholders, professional bodies and
other organisations, ongoing “out-reaching” publicity
programmes targeted at property owners in Hong
Kong and overseas owners of Hong Kong properties
respectively have also been kicked-off. The programme
activities held included roadshows at Government
buildings, briefing sessions for potential customers
(through collaboration with other Government
departments), OCs/owners’ committees of private
property developments and major stakeholders
such as the Heung Yee Kuk and the Hong Kong
Real Estate Agencies General Association, etc.

- wowlandreg gov.hk

(©) 31050000

\mlml uun 1nur| w:m i!lhhﬂ.

A TEABBARAEIRARFA AR E
Z PRI H R
Poster displayed at transportation
hub to raise public awareness of
the service

A ERDERNEZERIRE
Roadshow held at the Cheung Sha Wan Government Offices

amETEafEs R aRER
12 IR R PRI BN & M 2% L B [ F L
Briefing session cum promotion booth
held in collaboration with the Buildings
Department during its Building Safety
Advanced Certificate Course

B
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e-Alert Service for Authorized Institutions (Als)
The Land Registry launched the e-Alert Service for Als
under the Banking Ordinance (Cap. 155) (i.e. licensed
banks, restricted licence banks and deposit-taking
companies) on 1 February 2017 to help them better
manage credit risks in mortgage lending. The Als,
with consent from the property owners concerned
for subscribing to our Service, will receive electronic
notifications from the Land Registry when further
charge/mortgage documents in respect of the properties
mortgaged to the Als are lodged for registration with the
Land Registry.

To provide greater security and convenience to the Als
for submission of service applications for the e-Alert
Service as well as to increase operational efficiency, the
Land Registry has launched the e-Channel (Phase one) on
14 January 2019. Since then, subscriber Als can submit
their applications for subscription of service orders
through the e-Channel website at www.ealert-ai.landreg.
gov.hk. The initiative has been well received by the Als.
Around 75% of the service orders have been submitted
through the e-Channel during 2019/20.

To bring more convenience to Als, the Land Registry
will add the facilities for online submission of other
service applications such as termination/transfer of
service orders, change of particulars; and more user
functions including maintenance and enquiry of account
information to the e-Channel under Phase two of the
project which is targeted to be implemented in third
quarter of 2020. The relevant development work is now
underway.

FUTURE PLAN

e-Alert Service

We will continue the efforts in publicising and promoting
Property Alert to owners of Hong Kong properties.
Regarding the e-Alert Service for Als, we will launch the
e-Channel (Phase two) in the third quarter of 2020 to
further strengthen the functions of the e-Channel and to
enhance operational efficiency of both the Als and the
Land Registry.
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SERETH TITLE REGISTRATION

RECENT DEVELOPMENT

Stakeholder Consultation on “"New Land
First” Proposal and Proposed Amendments
to the LTO

During the year, we have been working closely with key
stakeholders to pursue the proposal of implementing title
registration on newly granted land first (“new land first”
proposal) in order to enable early implementation of the
land title registration system in Hong Kong. A Land Titles
Ordinance Steering Committee (LTOSC) meeting was
held in December 2019 at which we presented to the
members the proposed indemnity arrangements under
the LTO and reported progress on some

major issues in respect of the “new land

first” proposal including issues which

had been discussed at

five Land Titles Ordinance

Review Committee (LTORC)

meetings held in 2019.
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dEoh - BRAE (L EMEEH]) THTT  Besides, a briefing to the Law Society of Hong Kong and
NEFARARZMEMEBENEZE - T a seminar for the Hong Kong Conveyancing and Property
R2019F5 ARl AEBEZMERES Law Association Limited on the proposal of implementing
EERS LI EBEEMRAARITENE  e-lodgement under the LTO were respectively conducted
RifsTg - in May 2019.

AESHEERT DI MHEFREARERDN  We will continue to engage key stakeholders in

EEEFHETHW - WHEMREEIE  discussion on the main outstanding issues with a view to

Bt rT] A5 - forging consensus on such issues for implementing the
“new land first” proposal.

(EHERGEH)BELZESM(LME The membership lists of the LTOSC and LTORC are at

EHEMND BN EZEGHREZEDRIE  Annexes Il (d) and (e) respectively.
MR 11 (d) F(e) o
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SERETH TITLE REGISTRATION

Review of LTO and Preparation of LT(A)B

The TRS is inherently complicated as it involves complex
legal issues and carries significant implications. Legal
and other technical issues in the LTO that have been
identified are being reviewed. Preparation of the
legislative work for the introduction of the LT(A)B is in
progress.

A B
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FUTURE PLAN

We will continue our engagement with key stakeholders
and relevant Government departments to address any
issues relating to the “new land first” proposal and
finalise the proposed pertinent amendments to the LTO
for early implementation of land title registration system
in Hong Kong. We will also continue to work closely
with key stakeholders to resolve the outstanding issues
regarding the mechanism of converting existing land and
properties to the TRS.
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ANEBREIE HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

STAFF DEVELOPMENT

Staffing

The Land Registry maintains a well-trained and highly
flexible team of staff. The core group of staff are civil
servants to ensure stability of the department and
quality of service to customers. Contract staff under
Non-civil Service Contract or Post-retirement Service
Contract terms are also employed to give flexibility to the
department for responding to changes in operational or
business needs.

As at 31 March 2020, we had 524 permanent and 86
contract staff members. Our permanent staff comprise
officers of various grades including Land Registration
Officers, Solicitors, Treasury Accountants, Analysts/
Programmers and general grades. Our contract staff
include Solicitors, Accountant, Accounting Executive
and Clerks. We regularly review our staffing position
and adjust the number of contract staff in the light of
changes in operational requirements.

Staff Training

Staff training is a critical component of human
resource development. We provide opportunities and
encouragement for staff at all stages of their career
to help them realise their potential. To this end, we
develop an annual departmental staff training plan
and organise training programmes in accordance
with the plan. The ultimate objective is to enable
staff to work with confidence, strengthen teamwork,
reinforce commitment to service excellence and support
continuous improvement in individual and departmental
performance.

In 2019/20, we arranged over 2,020 days of training in
various modes on a wide spectrum of subjects.
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Year-round Training
Various training courses were provided to enhance the
core competencies of the workforce of the Land Registry.

An Induction Programme comprising briefings, visits
and attachments to different divisions was implemented
for the newly recruited Land Registration Officers for
familiarising them with the operations of the department.
A mentoring scheme, which was well received, continued
through the year as an additional resource to provide our
new officers with dedicated and personalised support.
Two familiarisation talks by the Lands Department and
Planning Department respectively were also arranged to
equip them with knowledge and understanding of the
roles and responsibilities of these departments, and their
work in relation with the Land Registry.
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EARABTHAMMYSEHMIBEEIE  For enhancing staff members’ capability to manage
Be - FFIE2019F 10 A 11 AAFT  emotions due to the local social incidents, a seminar on
BEETHRRIEHTHISEEE]EE - "Managing Emotions during Crisis” was organised for

all staff members in October and
4 \ November 2019.

75

\. J

RETERBIOEERAELINTER]  Officers at various levels attended respective tailor-made

AP TERBER|MIBCE  courses on “Performance Management”, “Coaching

MEgE | Ri2 WRIEVYEBKEB  and Counselling” and experiential training workshops

LB | e TISR T1EYT - AEFMBI T on “Team Building and Leadership” with a view to

TERYBL BE R WA 1 - enhancing their work competencies and strengthening
collaboration at work.

4 A
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A talk on “Corruption Prevention for Government
Officers” by the Independent Commission Against
Corruption was arranged for all Officer Grades staff to
enhance their knowledge and raise their awareness of
integrity issues concerning public officers. Besides, a
refresher course on “Application of Land Registration
Ordinance and Land Registration Regulations” was
arranged for Land Registration Officers to enrich and

update their knowledge and

e 7\ understanding of the legislation
and its applications at work.
(" )
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To dovetail with the upgrading of relevant computer
software during the year, a training course on “Microsoft
Windows 10" was also arranged.

We regularly arranged talks and briefing sessions by
other Government departments or public organisations,
including the Lands Department (Survey and Mapping
Office), the Hong Kong International Arbitration Centre
and the Highways Department during the year for our
senior officers. These sessions aimed to broaden the
officers’ knowledge and exposure.

Self-learning

In addition to classroom training, the Land Registry
encourages self-learning through e-learning programmes.
All staff are allowed to undertake a maximum of one and
a half days’ e-learning during which they are free from
their office work to pursue self-learning of various topics
of interest at our Learning Resource Centre.
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ANEBREIE HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

Staff Development

A wide range of staff development programmes are
offered to broaden staff's perspectives so that they can
meet new challenges, strengthen their communication
skills and develop policy formulation and leadership
capacities. In 2019/20, our staff members attended the
“National Studies” programmes, “Leadership in Action
Programme”, “Leadership Essentials Programme” and
joined the "Secretariat Attachment Scheme” organised
by the Civil Service Training and Development Institute.

Staff Motivation and Recognition

As a trading fund department, we place high value on
staff motivation and recognition for the continual pursuit
of excellence in customer services.

Staff Suggestions Scheme

Since 1993, we have introduced the Staff Suggestions
Scheme to encourage all staff to make suggestions on
various issues, including improvement of service quality,
operation, efficient use of resources and environmental
protection.

In 2019/20, we received a total of 18 staff suggestions
and five awards were granted.

Long Service Appreciation Award Scheme

Since 1999, we have launched the annual “Long Service
Appreciation Award Scheme” to give recognition to staff
with long and meritorious service in the department.

In 2019/20, the award was granted to a total of 54 staff
members with 25 or more years of meritorious service.

Best Frontline Staff Award Scheme

The Land Registry has launched the Best Frontline Staff
Award Scheme since April 2007 with the aim of fostering
a culture of good customer service and to recognise
laudable staff performance and achievements.

Individual staff members and teams receiving the highest
number of commendations from our customers in each
half-year period are awarded. Winner of the Team
Award for the second half year of 2019 is the Search
Services Section. To give due recognition, the names of
the winning staff members and teams are posted at the
Customer Centre and NTSOs.

¥ ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

71



72

ANEBREIE HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

ETER
BPIRAREE T AREBEIRMEE
BEPRBBRAEE - HPEEEBEES
RBOWMEBTHAESH  BMTIHME
TREMESSE  RESHE T ZHENE
i o

HFGBEESE
[BFmEEZE S | XB 140K A %@
BETHIMEEENREK -ZEEEF
RIT—REH - WMeEBETHEEEZ
BT B

1A MRS TE

(LipsEfE 8 TERA) 2HkE & @
MANREZ B EKETE R AT
T - BAATRETERE - B1EF
BE - R EBEM  HEEK - 8
THBHEEFHE « RIFHRE - RERE
T BB EEXRES - &0 TY
AXEEBTE - ABREEB R
hnss B T3 3RFT a7 B Rk

ITHAMEE TFEH#E

[T MEE T REe  HAKRE
UEBHENERE - £2019/20FF * %
RAMRAERERBRENT ZHMTE
NMERSEE) - BIRERHEY ETR
%~ EERIE - BEREBEEHE - B
BEEHSERBRAREEBITERE
BB eRARRSEEEES - 0F
BERTD o

Staff Relations

We recognise that effective communication between
management and staff is crucial for the provision of
quality service to customers. We continue to encourage
communication among staff at all levels through regular
staff relations meetings, departmental publications and
staff welfare functions.

Departmental Consultative Committee

The Committee comprises 14 representatives of various
staff groups and representatives of the management. It
meets quarterly to promote better understanding and
cooperation between staff and the management.

Staff Magazine

The Staff Magazine is a departmental publication issued
periodically under an editorial board comprising staff
of various divisions. It covers a wide range of topics
including featured stories, business updates, community
involvement, staff news and activity snapshots,
environmental protection, health tips, information
technology and language knowledge, etc. It is popular
among staff and helps promote team spirit and a sense
of corporate identity.

Staff Recreation Club

The Staff Recreation Club is run by staff on a voluntary
basis. In 2019/20, it organised various social and
recreational activities for staff and their families,
including Christmas party, volunteer social services,
interest classes, outings and sport activities. At the
Christmas party, we were honoured to have the presence
of the Secretary for Development, Mr Michael WONG to
celebrate this festive occasion with our colleagues. His
presence enlightened the party very much.

~
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HBEE Knowledge Management
RNEZETIMBEEZRG ] - ME#E  The Land Registry maintains a Knowledge Management
EPINEE RS A EIEM D F o % System to facilitate systematic management and sharing
AT BEH8,800(0 2 HHMESR] o of knowledge across the department. The system
fE201920% [ » AR B I EHRHBEL contains around 8,800 reference documents and
T40IERMER - LEREILIERE - precedent cases. Around 140 searches were made by

our staff daily for reference in their work in 2019/20.
RFR=EHE FUTURE PLAN
RNEERFESHBEMBIFINEET X The Land Registry will continue to reinforce its
It RETRHEEMZIRE - WL  organisational learning culture by providing appropriate
HAEMABE2MERABHEZEREE training programmes to staff and arranging suitable
BEAEEEIENEIRIE - Fi1B2  officers to attend executive development programmes
s B RFE - BTAEENH  and training programmes of the Civil Service Training and
BRiRE  AERBFEEFEUEmEE  Development Institute in the coming year. Through the
g AHPINRKERELER - training and development programmes, staff capabilities

will be strengthened to better prepare for changes and

contribute to the future development of the department.
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INTEGRATED REGISTRATION
INFORMATION SYSTEM (IRIS)

The IRIS Online Services have been operating smoothly.

Enhancements to IRIS
The Land Registry implemented the following major
enhancements to the IRIS in 2019/20:

-
’
.0

»  providing a bilingual information sheet annexed to
the imaged copy of an instrument withheld from
registration and imaged on or after 18 November
2019;

providing a new “Search PRN” function for
quick enquiry of the PRN of the land registers of
properties; and

¥ ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

75



76

EHREETE IT MANAGEMENT

3 EIEHIMELM I NERER
BHEREH BRI FL SR
HYEDIETIBE ©

2y
[)
.s

EARRFRR

REKBEBFHEMBBREOHERK -
ARZEZERAMBZRELEANREM
& TR ENCEER - RIS EME
BIREFI E AR R R BR K45 3 - #&
B TINRRBEIEIEEMRE RAREE
ABRHEBERIE o BInsasm k% ME
BARKHINRBERANEPFINEE -
B 20205 4 A B hs 4848 17 B

JTEE

o providing a filtering option to hide closed land

registers on the search result page of the “Search
Land Register” function.

IT SECURITY

The Land Registry implements improvement measures
with reference to the Government's IT security
requirements and best practices in the IT security
field. Departmental policy and guidelines on IT security
are circulated regularly to staff to reinforce their
understanding and awareness of the importance of
information security and personal data protection. A
network access control solution will be implemented
in April 2020 to strengthen the endpoint security
and bar unauthorised devices from connecting to the
departmental network.
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FUTURE PLAN

We will continue to explore ways to further enhance our
e-services to meet customers’ needs, including:

(&  to introduce mobile payment by digital wallet (i.e.
Apple Pay and Google Pay) for the IRIS Online
Services; and

to replace and upgrade the existing IT infrastructure
of the IRIS Online Services.
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BB & I8 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

FINANCIAL OBJECTIVES

In accordance with the TFO, the Land Registry pursues
clearly defined financial objectives as follows:

(& meeting expenses incurred in the provision of
services to the public and Government departments
out of the income of the trading fund, taking one
year with another; and

achieving a reasonable return, as determined
by the Financial Secretary, on the fixed assets
employed.

’aY
-

ACTUAL PERFORMANCE

When compared with 2018/19, revenue decreased by
$62.2 million (down 12.1%) to $452.3 million mainly
due to a decrease in business volume of registration of
documents, copying and reports on title. Operating
expenses increased by $30.6 million (up 7.3%) to $449.3
million mainly due to increase in staff costs, relocation of
the Central Imaging Centre to Queensway Government
Offices and upgrade of IRIS.
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MERR
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
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ANALYSIS OF REVENUE 2019/20
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2019/20 FEEBERA DT
ANALYSIS OF OPERATING COSTS 2019/20

BB IR R A B 5 .4%

%ﬁfﬁ&ﬁﬁféél-. 5%

General operating expenses and other costs

Tﬁ%&ﬁ&ﬁé’6.4o/o —'
Depreciation and amortisation

= |

?Eﬁﬁﬁf%ﬁrﬂ§7 . 80/0

Computer service charges

R

7R Bz BV AN [ TE B EE B ¥ R E B EUR
RaEft - Efft - RBEHBIAREERER
BRHE MEBBESXIMEDS
MEMBBREZE - RMSEREEE
BB o

Rental and management charges

aran 1 0.9%

Staff costs

FORECAST

The Land Registry’s revenue and return on fixed assets
will depend mainly on the business volume in the
registration, search, copying and reports on title services
which is subject to performance of the property market
and other relevant factors. We will continue to exercise
strict control on costs.
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Audit Commission
The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Legislative Council

Opinion

| certify that | have examined and audited the financial
statements of the Land Registry Trading Fund set out
on pages 87 to 125, which comprise the statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2020, and the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Land Registry
Trading Fund as at 31 March 2020, and of its results
of operations and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the manner
provided in section 7(4) of the Trading Funds Ordinance
(Cap. 430).

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with section 7(5) of
the Trading Funds Ordinance and the Audit Commission
auditing standards. My responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of my report. | am independent of the Land
Registry Trading Fund in accordance with those
standards, and | have fulfilled my other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with those standards. |
believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion.
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EZHEZZ KA REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF AUDIT

Other information

The General Manager, Land Registry Trading Fund
is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the
Land Registry Trading Fund’s 2019-20 Annual Report,
other than the financial statements and my auditor's
report thereon.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and | do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements,
my responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, | am required to
report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the General Manager, Land Registry
Trading Fund for the financial statements

The General Manager, Land Registry Trading Fund is
responsible for the preparation of financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and section 7(4) of the Trading
Funds Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
General Manager, Land Registry Trading Fund determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the General
Manager, Land Registry Trading Fund is responsible for
assessing the Land Registry Trading Fund’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting.
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BB

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the Audit Commission
auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Audit
Commission auditing standards, | exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. | also:

— identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control;

— obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Land Registry Trading Fund's
internal control;

— evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
General Manager, Land Registry Trading Fund;
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EZHEZZ KA REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF AUDIT

conclude on the appropriateness of the General
Manager, Land Registry Trading Fund’s use of
the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Land Registry Trading Fund’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If | conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention
in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of my auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Land Registry Trading
Fund to cease to continue as a going concern; and

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

FEITEER
(BREAZPEEIREHHARIT)

EirE

BBELT
ETITETH%

AR EFRIE261E
20209 H28H

Ms Hildy Chan
Assistant Director of Audit (Acting)
for Director of Audit

Audit Commission

26th Floor, Immigration Tower
7 Gloucester Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

28 September 2020
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE_ T _ZF=-"A=1T—HItFE

(PABB T ThIFIR)

for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

REEFE#HZWA  Revenue from contracts with

customers 4 452,329 514,533
EIERAR Operating costs 5 (449,299)  (418,724)
BIERA Profit from operations 3,030 95,809
HAUA Other income 6 36,105 38,170
FEER Profit for the year 39,135 133,979
Hih 2w Other comprehensive income - -
FEAZAERE Total comprehensive income

for the year 39,135 133,979
BEEERRE Rate of return on fixed assets 7 1.2% 34.1%

F£93E125 AN ERAMBERRN —F 7

The notes on pages 93 to 125 form part of these financial statements.
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B Bk &

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZEBE-_TEF=A=+—H

(AABETThIFIR)

as at 31 March 2020
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

B 5
Note 2019
FRBEE Non-current assets
M - B NREEM Property, plant and equipment 8 283,726 271,779
FRESE Right-of-use assets 9(a) 32,371 -
B EE Intangible assets 10 32,688 13,212
HNEE 17 R Placement with the Exchange
Fund 11 695,826 676,216
1,044,611 961,207
REEE Current assets
JE IR SR e ELAD Trade and other receivables
W FRIR 12, 13(a) 26,137 26,052
JEUR B8 A IR Amounts due from related
parties 13(a) 6,701 9,588
RITER Bank deposits 492,000 537,000
B & MIRTTHE R Cash and bank balances 17,996 24,369
542,834 597,009
REBEE Current liabilities
FEIEWA Deferred revenue 13(b) 9,620 8,505
XFRE Customers’ deposits 14 45,287 44,349
JEAST R SR B A Trade and other payables
JE < kI8 22,084 20,986
JEAS B A T IREX Amounts due to related parties 4,700 2,639
HEAFE Lease liabilities 9(b) 6,603 —
1 Bt FIa Provision for employee benefits 15 11,809 8,117
100,103 84,596
REEEFR Net current assets 442,731 512,413
BWEERMEREEME Total assets less current
liabilities 1,487,342 1,473,620

FIB3E125ANMEREAMBHRRN—ED °

The notes on pages 93 to 125 form part of these financial statements.
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B sk 3% (48 ) STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

kRBEE Non-current liabilities
EFEUA Deferred revenue 13(b) 6,565 4,761
HEARE Lease liabilities 9(b) 26,142 =
1B B1EFIE Provision for employee benefits 15 77,726 79,183
110,433 83,944
BEEFHE NET ASSETS 1,376,909 1,389,676
BEXR#E CAPITAL AND RESERVES
LEESENR Trading fund capital 16 118,300 118,300
REB&BF Retained earnings 17 1,258,609 1,271,376
1,376,909 1,389,676
BREZRLZ L - JP Ms Doris CHEUNG, JP
TR S E A S A8 General Manager, Land Registry Trading Fund
—E-FTFAAZTNA 28 September 2020

F93F 125 AN AR EHRERMN—ILD -

The notes on pages 93 to 125 form part of these financial statements.
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EmBE R
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HEZZ-_TF=-HA=+—H for the year ended 31 March 2020
(LABEEF TSR (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
fitaE
Note 2019
EFDNEER Balance at beginning of year 1,389,676 1,255,697
FEHETERE Total comprehensive income for
the year 39,135 133,979

BN BAAE Bl Statutory return paid to the
Government 17 (51,902) -

EFRNER Balance at end of year 1,376,909 1,389,676

FIB3E125ANMEREAMBHRRN—ED °

The notes on pages 93 to 125 form part of these financial statements.
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HEmER
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE_Z-ZF=-A=+—RHILFE for the year ended 31 March 2020
(AT Thd)R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

-:a:l 2019

EEEHMWESARE Cash flows from operating
activities
BIEZR| Profit from operations 3,030 95,809
ITE R HEEE Depreciation and amortisation 28,651 16,106
HEBBENFEXE  Interest expense on lease
liabilities 572 -
JEU B N EURREE  Decrease in receivables and
ATIRFREDR A amounts due from related
parties 4,398 340
R IE WA FEZ N Increase in deferred revenue 2,919 2,032
K FPiRe g N Increase in customers’ deposits 938 1,087
&S 338 K FE A~ Increase/(Decrease) in payables
AR and amounts due to related
& CRd) parties 2,301 (478)
EEBFBERIEI  Increase in provision for
employee benefits 2,235 1,698
REEEZEMNES  Net cash from operating
R activities 45,044 116,594

F£93E125 AWM ERAM B RRN —F 7

The notes on pages 93 to 125 form part of these financial statements.
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IBemER (&) STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

Lz
Note 2019
REETEWEESRE  Cash flows from investing
activities
JRE BARR &3 1@ A A Decrease/(Increase) in bank
FERITIEIRE deposits with original
wA (3 n) maturities over three months 45,000 (102,000)
BEYX  REBEX Purchase of property, plant and
BMAELAE equipment and intangible
assets (50,613) (20,392)
HEME  RER Proceeds from disposal of
M FTS property, plant and equipment 46 4
HNEESTFFAVIE A Increase in placement with the
Exchange Fund (19,610) (29,738)
2 U H 8 Interest received 34,098 37,613
®E8 /(AR &RE Net cash from/(used in)
EHWR S FEE investing activities 8,921 (114,513)
BMEEEBWESHRE Cash flows from financing
activities
BN ERAAE Bl #H Statutory return paid to the
Government (51,902) -
MHERKIE Lease payments 9(b) (8,436) -
AREEEERY Net cash used in financing
HEFE activities (60,338) —
RERZERBAEN Net (decrease)/increase in cash
GRA),/ #EhnEsE and cash equivalents (6,373) 2,081
EFINEER Cash and cash equivalents at
ZRRE beginning of year 24,369 22,288
EFRANBEESR Cash and cash equivalents at
ZEAE end of year 18 17,996 24,369

FI3F 125 BN AR BREN—ILD -

The notes on pages 93 to 125 form part of these financial statements.
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B 7% S 2% B &
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRS AT - BRI (Amounts expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars,
BT ALY unless otherwise stated)
1. &R GENERAL

EGE—NAN=FRNA=THERB(EEELIEN) (F430F) 3 - AR6IKBERER - &
—HN=ZFNA-—BARILEMELEES ([Ex]) - TivEMEEFRIIKHERN L
BREMARIT L EMSIE - WAFFREEM LS M ANA R L i 8 a RIE MR - Utk
O TR MR IRCEEME IR RO (F344F) B EWIER FAOEB R RS MR A
AR

The Land Registry Trading Fund (“the Fund”) was established on 1 August 1993 under the
Legislative Council Resolution passed on 30 June 1993 pursuant to sections 3, 4 and 6 of the
Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430). The Land Registry administers a land registration system
by maintaining an up-to-date Land Register and provides its customers with services and
facilities for searches of the Land Register and related land records. The Land Registry also
processes applications for the incorporation of owners and provides related services under the
Building Management Ordinance (Cap. 344).

2. FESITEE SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 FFEEREH Statement of compliance

AP BHREREEBELSLAANE A R MFAAERNT M BRE LR (LARGEHE B
REBRESSTMASEMNMEERNERNEEVBHREER BESHELRE)
e ESHRANTIESABRBENAT °

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), a collective term which includes all applicable individual HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Fund is set out below.

BAGTHASHEM THE THIEMEETNEEM B RELERNL N ANG A HERERSLA
HIER R - ES A EERMAETERNEL M| BMEAMBHRERROA S LTS
AHHIR S ETOR MRS (20F) ERMIEES -

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting period of the Fund. Note 3 provides
information on the changes, if any, in accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Fund for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.
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BA 8RR I T (&) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. FESTEHR @ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 RAMBHRERAEE Basis of preparation of the financial statements

REA TR R B E B UREK AL E -

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these financial statements is historical
cost.

RENT STV HRELNNTHBREATREEE LA - 1}5&&@3“ o A F A - h
AARBREFESTERRNER  UWREERBBEMBAES B2 HARE - ZFHtR
HENER  ARAEERLREMERRBR MR S8 E I%ﬁﬁr&ﬁﬂéﬂ (CEER-ToEE)
IEEZ%UFTT/\/% Alg kRS RBRIESHBTEREERABIRMENEZE
AT ARG REREEBA TR -

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

A TEEJHSZEﬁﬁﬁ?)“‘ﬂ’]fﬁ““‘\{ﬁii:’mﬂ ERI AT REFEEFNEH - BF
\E.quHHWAﬁEEEEFE{ IR E R EEFRRRN S AEEEFRARNE
ATHINER G BER

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.

ESEBER TR BLNS RAEFBERIOTEHE - Fin AR RIEHNRR - KR
FHAEFEETAFENTHARE  ETRABKEANRAR -  EREEMBENKRES
BERFARIER]

There are no critical accounting judgements involved in the application of the Fund'’s
accounting policies. There are also no key assumptions concerning the future, or other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next
year.
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B8RRI 5T (&) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. TESFTEE @) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
23 sRIEEREMEE Financial assets and financial liabilities
(a) IR BERARFE Initial recognition and measurement

(b)

ETNEMEEBEIINERSHER - BIIRK L EMRIKFUR - EUEEE A LIRS -
RITERARIR S MIRTTEEER

The Fund’s financial assets comprise placement with the Exchange Fund, trade and
other receivables, amounts due from related parties, bank deposits, and cash and
bank balances.

HEMEeRBEERTEPES BRI MEMENKIEA - BNBEALIRR  HE
BEAKLESRMNEE -

The Fund’s financial liabilities comprise customers’ deposits, trade and other
payables, amounts due to related parties, lease liabilities and provision for employee
benefits.

HEEXAFRERIANANET ST ZEBREHCREERERARE - RUK
AR SREENMERBERATENE  BMLIHERREZScREESH
TZETRMABEMEESIBERXBKA

The Fund recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. At initial recognition, financial
assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value plus or minus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets or the
issue of the financial liabilities.

PERHEBTE Classification and subsequent measurement

ESBEMBEREESIBAERNERMNEXRBIHEKANETE  BREHSRE
ENBRREHNRERSENNEBEAMTEE - BAORERERAINNARE K
B @MEENBBRERREMNT2 30 MM TERERERER S -

The Fund classifies all financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, on the basis that they are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold them for collection of contractual cash flows and
the contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest. The
measurement of loss allowances for financial assets is based on the expected credit
loss model as described in note 2.3(d).
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BA 8RR I T (&) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. TESFTEER @) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
23 SRMEERSREE @ Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
(b) PEREAZFE @& Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

ERMREIRAESMEENTRABHEHENAE - LD MRS R AT
BWAEZTHNTE - BERFXRZHRAIFZEREEXTHBEEBELXHEARNE
Rl iRKZeMEENRRAENSRBENBHERANEMERNRRE -
HSHEFEERMNRE  @ZRZeRIANMEGNGTAGRSRE - BETS
At RFAHEAEE - AR EEREERMNEAENAERIRAE XN TEHNET TR
B REPEARAEEMRESITE -

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating and recognising the interest
income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of the financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Fund estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider
the expected credit losses. The calculation includes all fees received or paid between
parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

HeBEMBSRAEN BREBABERN R ZIRBHKANETE -

The Fund classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

ESEEEERSREENEBEALREYR T HEREEEHN "B - eRAE
TMEEF DA ©

The Fund reclassifies a financial asset when and only when it changes its business
model for managing the asset. A financial liability is not reclassified.
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B8RRI 5T (&) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. TESFTEE @) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
23 SREERSBEE @) Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(c)

(d)

AT EH R Derecognition

ERCREERIRSARENSWENERE  AZXTREEEREEGRNBALD
R N EHREEEE - 2R EES KT HER

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows from the financial asset expire, or where the financial asset together with
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred.

ERMERNEHFEAERIEVE - S2HE - Z2BBESREHER

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged or cancelled, or when it expires.

TREERE Impairment of financial assets

HESpIRBIHKANET ENEREE (BUIRFKERSN) SR B 3 &R E%EEJZE’JEH&J%
BHERERERERARNEREER LORERER @R - B EREENEAR
R B a R A RE(E M E R Z1L

The Fund applies a three-stage approach to measure expected credit losses on
financial assets (other than trade receivables) measured at amortised cost and to
recognise the corresponding loss allowances and impairment losses or reversals, with
the change in credit risk since initial recognition determining the measurement bases
for expected credit losses:

F1ER - 12 A EHRERAEE
Stage 1: 12-month expected credit losses

=B RERAK - @R TANERARRILEARLN  2HRRAEHAEEDRRAE
HEBRI2EARATEBEENEZNSMHIIBEIERABERNED T AR

For financial instruments for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, the portion of the lifetime expected credit losses that
represent the expected credit losses that result from default events that are possible
within the 12 months after the reporting date are recognised.
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BA 8RR I T (&) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. TESFTEER @) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
23 SRMEERSREE @ Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
(d) TRIEERME @) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

F2[FE - = HEBEREE — FEERRE
Stage 2: Lifetime expected credit losses—not credit impaired

HBUIRTERIAR - R T ANEARERXEEN - BXIFFEREE  2HEHER
BiE (RRESR T ANEHARYANME AL IREZOFH I BN RHRERER)
T LATERR ©

For financial instruments for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition but that are not credit impaired, lifetime expected credit
losses representing the expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the financial instruments are recognised.

FIBER - 2HBEEEREE — ERRE
Stage 3: Lifetime expected credit losses —credit impaired

FeMTADREERRE SRIAZHBEHREHEE - FSWAREAERM R
ABEHRANE M SRR EEARRRRTH -

For financial instruments that have become credit impaired, lifetime expected credit
losses are recognised and interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost rather than the gross carrying amount.

YRR EEREE - ERRSREHRREREENSErE

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses.
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B8RRI 5T (&) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. TESFTEE @) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
23 EMEERLSBMEAMB @  Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
(d) TRIEERME &) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Wi EF 15 FE R AIE  Determining significant increases in credit risk
1=

EEERER  EeREULREBRTARRE B RRAHER B AR THRHE RS
AERZONER - AEeRTENERRARALGKEEN - FRAFESEEHE
NREEELER - ARAMEMENER - ER4A-—AXSZN —AUXSRMEEN GG
AKRASREBINZENEMN  ZE2REESHTEAERRE -

At each reporting date, the Fund assesses whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk for financial instruments since initial recognition by comparing
the risk of default occurring over the remaining expected life as at the reporting date
with that as at the date of initial recognition. The assessment considers quantitative
and qualitative historical information as well as forward-looking information. A
financial asset is assessed to be credit impaired when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred.

E [ PISira B Ll B R HERARERRRE S AEEM - stéRa ki
5 eRTARAREARRFENERRE  UEEKRERR - ERERANE
fER A% -

The Fund assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition on an individual or collective basis. For collective assessment,
financial instruments are grouped on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics,
taking into account investment type, credit risk ratings and other relevant factors.
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BA 8RR I T (&) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. TESFTEER @) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
23 SRMEERSREE @ Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
(d) TRIEERME @) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

W& F 15 FE R ANE  Determining significant increases in credit risk (continued)
1E 90 ()

INEBIE AR R AR ERAMNRIT EREEABREEARR - Hhem T EEHEEZLRE
S BRGEFHERAEEHEEENERHABTESHBEERERMT  THER
ABEBEREHARR - hEFEcRTAEMNERRBREIRTE A B V)G HER AR & KiE 1
hn e

Placements with banks with an external credit rating of investment grade are
considered to have a low credit risk. Other financial instruments are considered
to have a low credit risk if they have a low risk of default and the counterparty or
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term. The credit risk on these financial instruments is assessed as not having
increased significantly since initial recognition.

FEMEESEZINLD  ZeRMEESEBBEBRERME ZFEEETKAELE
B METEESREME HRKREEMEHENSEEEL2E KRG RAMER -

When a financial asset is uncollectible, it is written off against the related loss
allowance. Such assets are written off after all the necessary procedures have been
completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income.

i1 EERE A ER Measurement of expected credit losses

SRITANAEHREABRSHZER T AERMERHAN QT R X NEGH
EREE (AIMARRESNRE) BRAESSERBRSNENTESNRSRERER
THRPSWIINBESREMERNEE - FeMEEERESAREEHRE 2R
BREENREEABREATRST ARZEENRTERN XA ENGEARKRER
ENREMERNEZETERBEABE -

Expected credit losses of a financial instrument are an unbiased and
probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e. the present value of all cash
shortfalls) over the expected life of the financial instrument. A cash shortfall is the
difference between the cash flows due to the Fund in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Fund expects to receive. For a financial asset that is
credit impaired at the reporting date, the Fund measures the expected credit losses
as the difference between the asset’s gross carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.
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B8RRI 5T (&) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. FESTEHR @ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Y% - RIERB[M Property, plant and equipment
R—NAN=ZFNA—ABRBESNYWE RERSEM  SYINKARELEGMRBNKTL

ESHRZBRTAINMGEAR - A—AN=F/\A—BENBOYE - RiENSEMITIR
BABAIR -

Property, plant and equipment appropriated to the Fund on 1 August 1993 were
measured initially at deemed cost equal to the value contained in the Legislative Council

Resolution for the setting up of the Fund. Property, plant and equipment acquired since
1 August 1993 are capitalised at their costs of acquisition.

ATE - 3R MM ABRANE NG REt T & MERDREERIIR (MHE2.7)
- R-hA=FN\A-BERESHERYE &

— RBLBVEBEEMSEN  9FE  RARKE - AREMEEM

K5

The following property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses (note 2.7):

— buildings held for own use appropriated to the Fund on 1 August 1993; and

— plant and equipment, including computer equipment, motor vehicles, furniture and
fittings and other equipment.

FERRBYE REESBVOMGE A ERFY - LEREE MR G RERERAKA
B - ARG AHERFHIT

— BBEY 304
— EiEEM 5-10%F
— BM - -RAKEER S4E
- ”RE 54

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment, less
their estimated residual value, on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as

follows:

— Buildings 30 years
— Computer equipment 5-10 years
— Equipment, furniture and fittings 5 years
— Motor vehicles 5 years
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BA 8RR I T (&) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. FESFEE @ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Y% - RIERB[M () Property, plant and equipment (continued)

R—HAN=ZFNA-BBERESN T (RESZVFMEN) BLIFFEEE -

The land on which the Fund’s buildings are situated as appropriated to the Fund on
1 August 1993 is regarded as a non-depreciating asset.

HEWE  RELSVOBRRNREMGFREEENRRECHNEZRIORTE @ L
ERREEKER AR -

Gains or losses arising from the disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, and are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on the date of

disposal.
2.5 HE Leases
(a) E=F—NEWM™AB—H From 1 April 2019
48

EFEMBBYBHREERNFE165% [HE R (FE3.1) - HESRNEARAEMBIR
RAERSEREEEMBENEERRE HEIEHERE  PRHEHERAR12EA
FATHEMEERREEEEHENAEFNESERERANERET AZERE
%E o

After the adoption of HKFRS 16 “Leases” (note 3.1), a lease is recognised in the
statement of financial position as a right-of-use asset with a corresponding lease
liability at the lease commencement date, except that variable lease payments and
payments associated with short-term leases having a lease term of 12 months or
less and leases of low-value assets are charged to the statement of comprehensive
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

ERAEEESERAENGRRATENBERBRBNE (MiE2.7)  ZEAREERHE
EHREENGETAERAFHEMERNSEEABRENE -

A right-of-use asset is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses (note 2.7). The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and the asset’s estimated useful life.
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B8RRI 5T (&) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. FESHHERw SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.5 HE @) Leases (continued)
(a) H=ZZ—AEFEMA—H From 1 April 2019 (continued)

(b)

& ()

MZRARREHETE - AIARSHERERMN IR - HEABERRHEERGEIENNE
BT EFRIEHE

The lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments payable
over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Fund’s incremental borrowing rate. The lease
liability is subsequently adjusted by the effect of the interest on and the settlement
of the lease liability.

EESUS AN DT RAEAERBROTE - AEREGENE -
EEFHEREAEN  EHEARSENREAS FHEREE AECAREE
MEABTROEE - AIEMHERIIARERGR -

The lease liability is remeasured if the Fund changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise an extension or termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured,
a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in the statement of comprehensive income if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

“ZE—hFMA—HBZ Prior to 1 April 2019
Al

RIEFBGAEREN7HRIEE] - LB ARBEEERGREANEHBAE D E R
EHRNEE - JIAKLEHE - REHETINORBERBEERUNERETAZE K S
RIA °

Under HKAS 17 “Leases”, leases where all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of assets remained substantially with the lessors were accounted for
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases were charged to the
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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BA 8RR I T (&) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. FESFEE @ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
26 BL&EE Intangible assets

2.7

2.8

BREERIEEANEKSHEERBEEEAM MBI HRAFERAE - BEMTEFRE
NEFMERTT MESECHERNEETKFEETIIE EENAZERSHERNL -
BERACERREEREILEAMAER - B EERKAENR 2518 8 KT REEES
bR (F15E2.7) ©

Intangible assets include acquired computer software licences and capitalised
development costs of computer software programmes. Expenditure on development of
computer software programmes is capitalised if the programmes are technically feasible
and the Fund has sufficient resources and the intention to complete development. The
expenditure capitalised includes direct labour and cost of materials. Intangible assets are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses (note 2.7).

B EEN#FREFAIERFH CE10F) NEFLRIAZEKER

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to the statement of comprehensive income
on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years.

FERMEENRE Impairment of non-financial assets

FEMEE  BREYE REEKSY  ERAREEUAREREENREETCSERS AT
i NEEADHLBRETR - ERETFRMEENKRAESRERKLOHEE - RIEH
MEBEEZHARERAER - EEN A WE SR RE X FER L EKRANEERERE T
MEREE -

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets, including property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to identify
any indication of impairment. If there is an indication of impairment, an impairment loss
is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income whenever the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.

ZERE Cash equivalents

FRAReERHLRBLESHRE  ZFHBEBAKEN R A NEGE3EA - WHERA]
BHRASEANHMENRE  MEABEZINERERLTAK -

Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at the date of acquisition.
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BT 15 M5 (48 ) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. TESFTEE @) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.9 IEEW A Deferred revenue

EESBERETELH  EEPXNRE  HESEBFEKRERFINKEWRE  E2
SRESHABHERR/ETELRA B2 EBEREUBITERHEER - SEHEREL
WA UL ADNATERR

If a customer pays consideration, or the Fund has an unconditional right to consideration,
before the Fund transfers a service to the customer, the Fund recognises its contract
liability as deferred revenue. The Fund derecognises the deferred revenue and recognises
revenue when the Fund transfers the service and, therefore, satisfies its performance
obligation.

210 EEREF Employee benefits

EeWEBBRAKERANET - HE - nME R FRAHERBIRME BIRE A
EFENRFEERRAR - LAKEME @ EENSEMNHAXBRES T RITTHIERT
(TBUF]) e T REMNEKE REERAN - HERERUEBRBAEFENE -

The employees of the Fund comprise civil servants and contract staff. Salaries, staff
gratuities and annual leave entitlements are accrued and recognised as expenditure in
the year in which the associated services are rendered by the staff. For civil servants,
staff on-costs, including pensions and housing benefits provided to the staff by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“the Government”), are
charged as expenditure in the year in which the associated services are rendered.

IRAZFRASHRIENAKENRERREEERIN TBREBMSEMAT
REMB TRBHEARSFTINEFTRNEmMBRERP I

For civil servants employed on pensionable terms, their pension liabilities are discharged
by reimbursement of the staff on-costs charged by the Government. For other staff,
contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income as incurred.

2.1 L A TR 52 Revenue recognition

ESAERNEFPBEMAGHNRBUABTEBRNETR - RES A IRZARSEHE
FRENSRE  BATPAOEA -

The Fund recognises revenue from contracts with customers when it satisfies a

performance obligation by transferring a promised service to a customer, at the amount
of consideration to which the Fund expects to be entitled in exchange for the service.

F BIARBEBR A R IRIA S 77 AR

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.
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BA 8RR I T (&) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. FTESTTHEHER @ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2,12 MR E Foreign currency translation

REFINER S BRXZEENERBRBLET - WIEBEAENEEEENREE @ BiK
BEANRTERGERET - INERBEELNE L K MER - SE2HRERTDER

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
using the spot exchange rates at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong
dollars using the closing exchange rate at the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

2I3BEEAL Related parties

EeRRIB(EEESGPID KL - YEBTE TOBIL A EN - FRAESEREEBRD
HEMEATETRS  ERBREAERKLEM - HME @RS ARSI BUFAEHISE
EXENI B A THE -

The Fund is a separate accounting entity within the Government established under the
Trading Funds Ordinance. During the year, the Fund has entered into transactions with
various related parties, including government bureaux and departments, other trading
funds and financially autonomous bodies controlled or significantly influenced by the
Government, in the ordinary course of its business.

SR BRI CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BEEEIAERM TETHENEETNB BT HRMEER LN ASET AL - FRIA NI
RAERABTBMBREEINF16RMELNTEIN  ZFHEANIETHESHEARRILIRE

=47
e

i

_}\,

The HKICPA has issued certain new or revised HKFRSs that are effective for the current
accounting period. None of them impact on the accounting policies of the Fund except for
the adoption of HKFRS 16 as set out below.

HWRARMNER S 5 H H R AR ()3 B a2 (MEE23) ©

The Fund has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period (note 23).
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B8RRI 5T (&) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. EFBERRE @) CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.1 EBMKREERE165E HKFRS 16 “Leases”
[ %

FEMBEREERNE1FIMAEBGALERIE 175 - sSIAE—mABEAGHER - EJ0K
HMAERMEHRBE12ZEANHENEEREE  HEEEEENHERRI

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17. It introduces a single lessee accounting model and
requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than
12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.

RABBYBRELENE 165 - TEXEESERABANETE - RS EERMAKESR]
EBWIE - BREFIITLEE Y MEXRMBIALRERATE  ERINE B_FT—NF
MA—BEREEF 2 BET AR ©

The adoption of HKFRS 16 has primarily affected the Fund’s accounting as a lessee. The
Fund elected to apply the modified retrospective approach where the comparative figures
were not restated, and there was no cumulative effect of initial application required to be
recognised as an adjustment to retained earnings as at 1 April 2019.

ERAREELZASNEERENSENE  UIRBE-FT-NF=A=1t—HEMBNRREX
FERRTAN M EFEN S B T AFRHE -

The right-of-use assets were measured at an amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted

by the amounts of prepaid and accrued lease payments recognised in the statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2019.

o

Lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the Fund'’s incremental borrowing rate as at 1 April 2019.

TXRBRABEMBRSEAZ1REECEANTELENHRAER -

Set out below are disclosures relating to the main impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on
the Fund.
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BA 8RR I T (&) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. ST BERE @ CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.1 EBMBHREERZE165 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)
[fAE | @)

RZZ-NFOA—-BRABTBVBEREENZ16REPBEARKRNOZENT

The effect of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on the statement of financial position as at
1 April 2019 is as follows:

HERX

R@BERY
REER R-B-NE
R-B-hF F165% mA—H
mA—H ik =] ik

Adjustment
on initial Balance at
Balance at  application 1 April 2019,
1 April 2019  of HKFRS 16  as adjusted

ERELAE Right-of-use assets - 40,421 40,421
JENIRE T R E b JELLZIE  Trade and other receivables 26,052 (365) 25,687
ERIRR R EMEMNTZIE  Trade and other payables (20,986) 553 (20,433)
HEERE(RE) Lease liabilities (current) - (7,500) (7,500)
HEAR GERE) Lease liabilities (non-current) - (33,109) (33,109)
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B8RRI 5T (&) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. EFBERRE @) CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.1 EEBMKBHREERZE165 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)
[fAE | @)

TRIRERABESAERNENVTRABRER - NF=A=1T—"BHNKLHEASE (K
t22) BR-T-NEFHA-BRBEFEVMBREENZ 16 REMBIRNARERNEE
BEMNERE -

The table below shows the difference between operating lease commitments disclosed
applying HKAS 17 as at 31 March 2019 (note 22) and lease liabilities recognised under
HKFRS 16 in the statement of financial position as at 1 April 2019.

—NWF=B=+—HH Operating lease commitments

,ﬁ<<< f &g at 31 March 2019 13,308
n:aeEETEETFER  Add: lease payments of extension
MEREEMNEENIE options reasonably certain to be
exercised 29,984
B TENEESH Less: prepaid lease expenses (365)
E%;ﬁﬁjﬁi&iiﬁﬁlj Remaining lease payments under
F165% T FIgrH EFRIE HKFRS 16 (without discounting)

(W AmHTIR) 42,927
BRI B S 4B KE Less: total future interest expenses (2,318)
R=ZF-hFWAE—H Lease liabilities recognised

BENEHEESE at 1 April 2019 40,609
RZZE-NFHA—H Weighted average incremental

A EA?EfE\E\ EL:) borrowing rate applied to lease

INHE IR 8 KA = liabilities at 1 April 2019 1.55%
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BA 8RR I T (&) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4, REEFESHZWA REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH

CUSTOMERS

IR AR Registration of documents 176,950 191,592
2 Search 86,762 90,842
R Copying 78,932 110,035
EREWmE Reports on title 47,484 60,358
B RTRE e-Alert services 30,338 35,197
EF U REBRS Owners’ corporation services 15,464 15,202
HAtb Others 16,399 11,307
M Total 452,329 514,533

ESEFEFAMNTENENEE  EBFRATPEEMETEMM;EM L ELMMNEH
THACEREVRTS - EP AR BERKAMEECENREE - HEBREESHUIRP - A
NRBE - B2 RAERERENEAREITENET - LERRBERK AL INEERKE -

The Fund’s performance obligations in contracts with customers mainly involve providing
services, for registration of documents and searches of the Land Register and related land
records, to the customers. A customer is required to pay a fixed amount of service fee for
each service in advance, or opt to have service fees being charged monthly by opening an
account with the Fund. The Fund satisfies its performance obligation as the service is rendered
and recognises the fee over time based on a cost-to-cost method.

EREEALRBERIVREZERGEHIE B RERUREHRAKEBITEAOSME - LR
BBl 28R AT A ERIRGE -

For owners’ corporation services provided to related parties, the Fund satisfies its performance
obligation as the service is rendered and recognises a service fee over time on a full cost
recovery basis.
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B8RRI 5T (&) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

5. EERA OPERATING COSTS

-;a;l 2019

BETEA Staff costs 341,223 322,894
—MREERX General operating expenses 17,999 16,928
BRI < Computer service charges 35,083 32,782
HeMERE Rental and management charges 20,076 25,616
RRITHE B Central administrative overheads 5,555 3,627
P& Rt Depreciation and amortisation 28,651 16,106
B EA Audit fees 712 771
M Total 449,299 418,724
6. Hftlg A OTHER INCOME

-;H;I 2019

FE - Interest from:
— IR1TER — bank deposits 14,883 10,925
— INEESTFR — placement with the
Exchange Fund 21,176 27,241
BREME  RERBM Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 46 4
e Total 36,105 38,170
7. BEEERRR RATE OF RETURN ON FIXED ASSETS

EEEELRFRE (HEAWZHRENBTBUEREERFE165MER - UELER) BAREMA
Wz (TEEFMEWA) BRUETEEFFENE  WUEIHKNARKRE -BEEERERE
Y RERBMANBFEE - BEHRESITUNERTRAGRE NEFEFTEERRES.9%
(ZZE—NF :59%)WBIEZ-

The rate of return on fixed assets, the derivation of which is consistent with that before the
adoption of HKFRS 16 to achieve comparability, is calculated as total comprehensive income
(excluding interest income) divided by average net fixed assets, and expressed as a percentage.
Fixed assets include property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets only. The Fund is
expected to meet a target rate of return on fixed assets of 5.9% (2019: 5.9%) per year as
determined by the Financial Secretary.
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BA 8RR I T (&) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

8. M%¥  REK=ZM PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2
TR £ BRE
=32 B kkE

Land Equipment,
and Computer Furniture Motor
Buildings Equipment and Fittings Vehicles

D% Cost

“Z—\F  At1 April 2018

mA—H 350,000 175,148 15,914 244 541,306
NE Additions - 10,729 5,070 - 15,799
& Disposals - (1,121) (1,988) - (3,109)
E-Z—A%F At 31 March 2019

=RA=t+—H 350,000 184,756 18,996 244 553,996
EZZ-RFE At 1 April 2019

MA—H 350,000 184,756 18,996 244 553,996
RE Additions - 17,607 7,800 - 25,407
HE Disposals - (4,324) (1,208) - (5,532)
E=ZZF=-ZFF At 31 March 2020

=A=+-H 350,000 198,039 25,588 244 573,871
REIE Accumulated

depreciation

EZZ—)\F  At1April 2018

mA—A 94,997 164,085 15,062 244 274,388
FEER Charge for the year 3,851 5,914 1,173 - 10,938
& Disposals - (1,121) (1,988) - (3,109
E-_ZT—hNF At 31 March 2019

=A=+—H 98,848 168,878 14,247 244 282,217
E-Z-NE At1 April 2019

A—H 98,848 168,878 14,247 244 282,217
FEER Charge for the year 3,850 6,772 2,838 - 13,460
HE Disposals - (4,324) (1,208) - (5,532)
E-Z-Z& At 31 March 2020

=R=+-H 102,698 171,326 15,877 244 290,145
REEE Net book value
E-ZE=-FF At 31 March 2020

=HA=t+-H 247,302 26,713 9,711 - 283,726
E-ZT—HF  At31 March 2019

=A=t—H 251,152 15,878 4,749 - 271,779

112 BBELHFMEZEES THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG



B8RRI 5T (&) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

9. HE LEASES
(a) ERAEEE Right-of-use assets
BEEY
Buildings
2020
A Cost
A At beginning of year -
EEXEND B SR EXERIZE 165  Adjustment on initial application
miEL R AR (M1EE3.1) of HKFRS 16 (note 3.1) 40,421
FEFEY - KRR At beginning of year, as adjusted 40,421
RNE Additions -
EFK At end of year 40,421
A& Accumulated depreciation
EFA At beginning of year -
FEEHA Charge for the year 8,050
TEF 4R At end of year 8,050
IR E F B Net book value
EFR At end of year 32,371
(b) HESE Lease liabilities
R EN Current 6,603
JEmED Non-current 26,142
B Total 32,745
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BA 8RR I T (&) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

9. *HE(?E) LEASES (continued)
(b) HEEE @) Lease liabilities (continued)

TEREAAEAMNED  AERLMERSE

The table below shows changes in lease liabilities, including both cash and non-cash

changes.

EFA At beginning of year -
H &R AN E B B 1 S 228 Adjustment on initial application of

F165mmIEL AR (M5E3.1)  HKFRS 16 (note 3.1) 40,609
TEE - KRR At beginning of year, as adjusted 40,609
REBMERSRENES) : Changes from financing cash flows:

HEZE Lease payments (8,436)
FHEEH - Non-cash changes:

HEBENMNEXH Interest expense on lease liabilities 572
EFL At end of year 32,745

HERBENRGSOHRIENT - EEEHRRESOARMENRESRESH -

The remaining contractual maturities of lease liabilities, which are based on contractual

undiscounted cash flows, are shown below:

—FK Within one year 7,057
—FREMFN After one year but within two years 4,380
MEBRERFA After two years but within five years 13,140
hFE After five years 9,914
B Total 34,491
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B8RRI 5T (&) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

9. *HE(%) LEASES (continued)
() Az HE WK ABPAETE Expense items in relation to leases recognised
EEEMNXHIER in the statement of comprehensive income
MEBENMEXE Interest expense on lease liabilities 572
(d) HEZRERLERE Total cash outflow for leases
MENIB Lease payments 8,436
10. B EE INTANGIBLE ASSETS
BB R
RAHBBE A
Computer software
licences and system
development costs
2020 2019
5% Cost
e At beginning of year 211,393 203,115
NE Additions 26,617 8,278
EFR At end of year 238,010 211,393
S Accumulated amortisation
EE] At beginning of year 198,181 193,013
FEEH Charge for the year 7,141 5,168
FEF 2 At end of year 205,322 198,181
MR E R E Net book value
TR At end of year 32,688 13,212
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BA 8RR I =T (&) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1M1.EEEHFER PLACEMENT WITH THE EXCHANGE
FUND
ONEE S 17 A4 56, 9581 BT (ZE—NE  6.76288T) HFS56EBTALER

1.358FABT(ZF—NF : 1.1628ETT )%#&t‘:EENIJ%Erﬂi%HXE‘WJQ o TF K A ENE
(AEFEFAERT) - HIAh ZTEHX$$°

The balance of the placement with the Exchange Fund amounted to HK$695.8 million
(2019: HK$676.2 million), being the principal sums of HK$560 million and interest paid but
not yet withdrawn at the reporting date of HK$135.8 million (2019: HK$116.2 million). The
term of the placement is six years from the date of placement, during which the amount of
principal sums cannot be withdrawn.

SNERESFHRAMEBZREFIABENEERRFE - ZEXBINEESREMABEFHNTH
FERER®R  SF3FHMBFAESFEL—EFENFHFEREE - U0% /TR - MERER
2E e _T_EFRAEERAEFITI%  —E-NFREF29% -

Interest on the placement is payable at a fixed rate determined every January. The rate is the
average annual investment return of the Exchange Fund's Investment Portfolio for the past
six years or the average annual yield of three-year Government Bonds for the previous year
subject to a minimum of zero percent, whichever is the higher. The interest rate has been
fixed at 3.7% per annum for the year 2020 and at 2.9% per annum for the year 2019.

12.BENREFREMEWFIE TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

& W MR X Trade receivables 10,847 12,224
FEETFA - Accrued interest from:
- IRITFK — bank deposits 5,931 5,536
—- HNEE ST — placement with the
Exchange Fund 6,401 4,835
TE 1A Prepayments 2,951 3,448
Ze Deposits 7 9
g Total 26,137 26,052
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B8RRI 5T (&) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

13.BEFNESHNEeR CONTRACT BALANCES WITH CUSTOMERS
(a) ERFENENEE Receivables and contract assets

nEAREMATFREENRBMS - kS BAREFIREHRIIEN (HE12) /9 EKIR
Ko EREHTEEA LRS- ERE B RKRFIRERENE R M BSHOR K &) B U
BALIRN - MESIWRETABRERERMBRFNGNEE - EXNEMRT - BAREFE
BHRBEER - R ESWREEMERKFIARSNEE

For services provided to customers with service fees charged monthly, the balance of
receivables at the reporting date is presented as trade receivables in note 12. For services
provided to related parties, the balance of receivables at the reporting date is presented
as amounts due from related parties in the statement of financial position. The Fund
does not have any contract assets arising from these two categories of services. For other
services, since customers pay the service fees in advance, the Fund does not have any
receivables or contract assets.

(b) EXHEE Contract liabilities

EsHWBEFBENERRATPRERFOELT - eRMBERNER P ANELERANFT
A - DA

The Fund’s obligations to provide services to customers for which the Fund has received
advance payments from the customers are presented as deferred revenue in the
statement of financial position, as analysed below:

EEW A Deferred revenue -;E;I 2019

M AR & Registration fees 7,498 6,463
BFIRRNIREE e-Alert service fees 7,170 5,079
E RIS E Other service fees 1,517 1,724
FE G Total 16,185 13,266
(A3 Representing:

mEBE Current liabilities 9,620 8,505
EmBEE Non-current liabilities 6,565 4,761
FR G Total 16,185 13,266
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BA 8RR I T (&) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

13.EB8ZEFNENES @ CONTRACT BALANCES WITH CUSTOMERS (continued)
(b) EXHEE @ Contract liabilities (continued)

BREWMARNER S ERES BN BEREGET (AEFDRBET) NENEENRXZER
R - T AHETRIIRBHNEERASREFAERRSWA - MEMIELTR
AREMERERRBRA - RETAEFPEHNRERAARRZER -

The balances of deferred revenue above represent the aggregate amount of the
transaction price allocated to the performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially
unsatisfied) at the reporting date. For the deferred revenue from e-Alert services, the
Fund expects to recognise as revenue within eight years. For other deferred revenue, the
Fund expects to recognise as revenue within one year. No consideration from contracts
with customers is not included in the transaction price.

FREEBAGHNERNEBFINAT ¢

Significant changes in the balances of deferred revenue during the year are shown below:

2019

EFPIREW A LESRFTH  Decrease due to recognition as

RIBRF N EER A revenue during the year that
WA TR was included in the balances
of deferred revenue at
beginning of year (5,688) (6,208)
EFRUERTESE A i Increase due to advance
AN payments received during the
year 8,607 8,240
14.5F RS CUSTOMERS' DEPOSITS

ARSI R AR S o
This represents deposits received from customers for services to be rendered.

15. EETEFRE PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
b AT B WS BB ATIR M R4 T 1R B EBM B E (RME2.10) -

This represents the estimated liability for employees’ annual leave for services rendered up to
the reporting date (see note 2.10).
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B8RRI 5T (&) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

16. B EBEHEEX TRADING FUND CAPITAL
M ARATE RS HIRE -

This represents the Government's investment in the Fund.

17. REBEF RETAINED EARNINGS
-:H;I 2019
TEF VIR EEER Balance at beginning of year 1,271,376 1,137,397
FEARE2AERKE Total comprehensive income for
the year 39,135 133,979
A TE B ¥R Statutory return (51,902) -
EFRNER Balance at end of year 1,258,609 1,271,376

R-Z-ZFE—F > BARB(EEESRIDERSBE_Z-NF=A=1T—"HLE=AFE
B BIREIRR (R E7) BRERT —REA - ZBRR T _FTF=-_F%X °

In January 2020, the Government directed the transfer of the target returns (see note 7) for
the three years ended 31 March 2019 into general revenue pursuant to the Trading Funds
Ordinance. The transfer was completed in March 2020.

18. B RERHAST CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
-;a;l 2019
W& MIRTTA R Cash and bank balances 17,996 24,369
RITIFHK Bank deposits 492,000 537,000
/INET Subtotal 509,996 561,369
W RBHERAIMALALAR  Less: Bank deposits with original
RITFER maturities over
three months (492,000) (537,000)
HEeEREREE Cash and cash equivalents 17,996 24,369
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BA 8RR I T (&) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

19.FAEALTRS RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
REEAUMBERRASERBEORZI - FREFBEATETHEMEARZ SRR T

Apart from those separately disclosed in the financial statements, the other material related
party transactions for the year are summarised as follows:

(@) EZMBAEATRENRG B/ HEM BN ELM R - IRH
BREIRNTERERE - ANREETIREERYE - BLRBAESHROEUWAS1.048FE T
(ZZF—NF  1.3748870) - EL RO EEMTINREBEFEHNIWAIAT -

Services provided to related parties included registration of land documents, search of
land registers and records, supply of copies of land records and reports on title, and
owners’ corporation services. The total revenue derived from these services amounted
to HK$104.8 million (2019: HK$137.4 million). This amount is included in revenue from
contracts with customers under note 4.

(b) BEBEALTMESRHEARBEEEBEIN - B s - EP?%TTBUFD%J‘E’JHEZ_‘“ o HEHE
LR B AR X /33,6908 B (ZE—NF : 340088 7T) - G BT EEWES
REIERKANTE T °

Services received from related parties included computer services, accommodation, central
administration and auditing. The total cost incurred on these services amounted to
HK$36.9 million (2019: HK$34 million). This amount is included in operating costs under
note 5.

() MEBABEALTEBEANDE RERBVERERETIRE ZLEEMNAKRKAAETISOEB T
(ZE—NF : 4608BHBT) °

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment from related parties included fitting out
projects. The total cost of these assets amounted to HK$7.5 million (2019: HK$4.6 million).

E2mBEEALTRHE H&WE’JH&%%D*ﬁiﬁt}\iﬁﬁﬁ‘“mu&%ﬂz& RE|—1ZEFTE - BIFRE

HERBORS - WEMAR—5  ERRERGEEA TR - Al E 2 HB AT T
(=

Charging for services rendered to or received from related parties was on the same basis,
that is, at the rates payable by the general public for services which were also available to the
public or on a full cost recovery basis for services which were available only to related parties.
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B8RRI 5T (&) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

20. et R P B2 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(a) REBK Investment policy

(b)

HeUNBERTHIARKEBFEINERSFREBIFINEREE - RENWRERRE
REMEEBLEKRER  BECRERBMEBEHMNES - WREEMEEARD

The Fund maintains a conservative approach on investments in financial assets including
placement with the Exchange Fund and bank deposits. Investment decisions are made
according to the guidelines from the Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury, the
Hong Kong Monetary Authority and other relevant regulations.

= AR Credit risk
FHRRREcRIAEN—ABTEETEAMAES B E AU BKELNERR -

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.

ESMERARR  EZEURNINEES TR - BUIRK S EMEIFIR - BREEALTIR
O SRITIFERLIRITAERR - RS ARREBER » UHERERAAZNEAER -

The Fund'’s credit risk is primarily attributable to placement with the Exchange Fund,
trade and other receivables, amounts due from related parties, bank deposits and bank
balances. The Fund has a credit policy in place and the exposure to these credit risks is
monitored on an ongoing basis.

AREREERER - FiAEHEREERAEENBIET - L REEREABK
ERER - BEEERAZN12E A EREAFRNREN 8 - EoTERRAOAEY
TEA -

To minimise credit risks, all fixed deposits are placed with licensed banks in Hong Kong.
These financial assets are considered to have a low credit risk. The loss allowances are
measured at amounts equal to 12-month expected credit losses, which are assessed to be
immaterial by the Fund.
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BA 8RR I T (&) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

20. AR ERE @ FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) EHER @ Credit risk (continued)

RITEARMRITERNERE R - UBBEXEFTEIEENTR - 20T :

The credit quality of bank deposits and bank balances, analysed by the ratings designated

by Moody's or their equivalents, is shown below:
2019

ERFR Credit rating:
AalZAa3 Aal to Aa3 17,298 23,495
A1ZEA3 A1 to A3 437,100 286,100
Baal £ Baa3 Baa1l to Baa3 55,000 251,000
s Total 509,398 560,595

HAEMEMEERATARMERTE  BEESHFTEBREREREN  HULEREERE
o

While other financial assets are subject to the impairment requirements, the Fund
has estimated that their expected credit losses are minimal and considers that no loss
allowance is required.

EHREAESNEREEMAAENRSERRARBBEAE R EREE -

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the financial assets of the Fund at the reporting
date is equal to their carrying amounts.

(o) REBESRAMR Liquidity risk
nBEREBEX —ERBKHEUBETESRABREENEETNRER -

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities.

BRE(EEEZGD)  ER2RATHEAS a%”ﬁ%iﬁimﬁﬁ/ﬁﬂ&ﬁ”fﬁ/,j%ﬁﬁﬁl
AlRIRAE - ESOBRETEH Eﬁé’%ﬁﬂ%&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmébé‘i\  EIRBEM R BRI &
Bl ANEREHNTDHESH %iﬂ%&béﬁ@ﬂkﬂ%—a& BEEHRDE SR
REK -

Under the Trading Funds Ordinance, the Fund is responsible for its own cash
management, including short-term and long-term investment of cash surpluses, subject
to approval by the Financial Secretary. The Fund's policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. As the Fund has a strong
liquidity position, it has a very low level of liquidity risk.
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BT 15 M5 (48 ) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

20 cREBREE @ FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) F=J= k& Interest rate risk

(e)

ﬂfﬂ ?almim’"JT“ibfﬁi%IﬁEﬁéE’JH& MRz Al — 2 5 /AT ENERR &
imugﬂ_zﬂ

Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in market interest rates.
This can be further classified into fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate
risk.

ATEAHEARESRIANATEEENSHELBMEDHHEAR - ARESNRITE
HATESMTA EMSAELTA  BESMTANATEEE M AM - AX i
S RAE IR R AES T - MRRRNED T e EANEDERESORFIEE -

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Since the Fund’s bank deposits
bear interest at fixed rates, their fair values will fall when market interest rates increase.
However, as all these financial assets are stated at amortised cost, changes in market
interest rates will not affect their carrying amounts and the Fund's profit and reserves.

R RENXRER ?Eéﬁﬂlﬁﬁﬁﬂixfﬁ/i\/ﬁéglrh%i"ﬁ“%ﬁﬁﬁxﬁi%bﬂ’]ﬂ o g EA
EHEANRSRENERR  HARKSANIECHTASTEI8MTA -

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Fund is not exposed to
material cash flow interest rate risk because it has no major financial instruments bearing
interest at a floating rate.

B b Currency risk
E¥ERESRMIANATEIARKRERETRAEZZ S MKBI A RR

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

HEN—MEBRIEAETHEN  AMTSsIHEBRER -

The Fund’s normal business transactions are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
therefore do not give rise to currency risk.

ERNUAXRTAEMRIRE » ENETHEIITHE - RSN EEREBREE -

In respect of investments denominated in United States dollars, owing to the linked
exchange rate of the Hong Kong dollar to the United States dollar, the Fund has a very
low level of currency risk.

EHRER > WAET/RMUMNEBEERTBSTETL (ZT—F  5TAET) - FIrE Rt
BENMAESRBEANETA/AM

At the reporting date, financial assets totalling HK$5,000 (2019: HK$5,000) were
denominated in United States dollars. The remaining financial assets and all financial

liabilities were denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
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BA 8RR I T (&) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

20 cEREE @ FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(f) HEit<mEbs Other financial risk

EeRERNBF - AETHNERESERER (1) WEHmERE AR - B
ZTEEF=A=F+—H BRIENFR-ZTFHEXRIEIN R S0EER
(ZZ—NF : S0EER) MEMRETE  GirFERFNREGBBEM, 35088 T
(ZZE—NF : 34088 7T) °

The Fund is exposed to financial risk arising from changes in the interest rate on the
placement with the Exchange Fund which is determined every January (note 11). It
was estimated that, as at 31 March 2020, a 50 basis point (2019: 50 basis point)
increase/decrease in the interest rates for 2019 and 2020, with all other variables held
constant, would increase/decrease the profit for the year and reserves by HK$3.5 million
(2019: HK$3.4 million).

(9) 2¥E Fair values

HABMSEENERTANATVTERBREREANTEREET - WRELFMHR
B - APARESREAMEEITNEARSE BmRBIEFEE A FE -

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market
prices at the reporting date. In the absence of such quoted market prices, fair values
are estimated using present value or other valuation techniques, using inputs based on
market conditions existing at the reporting date.

BT AL NEE A FHEERIBE T AN BEM BN KATIK o

All financial instruments are stated in the statement of financial position at amounts
equal to or not materially different from their fair values.

21. EARRIE CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
G-E-TE-—A=+—0  HE5SURENERENBRBOENAEKENT

As at 31 March 2020, the Fund had capital commitments, so far as not provided for in the

financial statements, as follows:
2019

BEHUERERYD Authorised and

contracted for 63,678 8,141
EHEERELD Authorised but not yet

contracted for 274,798 361,082
g Total 338,476 369,223
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B8RRI 5T (&) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

ERER - REBETAREN L SEEYZEHE - RREXNNREREFBAENT

At the reporting date, the total future minimum lease payments payable under non-cancellable
operating leases for land and buildings were as follows:

-;H;I 2019

BB —F
Be—FENBBRF

Not later than one year - 7,760
Later than one year

but not later than

five years - 5,548

A

Total - 13,308

EE_“ ﬂﬁmﬂ E!i RIRES N ESRIRRIIF I TE2.5(a) FIE FT R
 ABESARRENEETIRFBERMZEob) HE -

» R TR

From 1 April 2019 onwards, future lease payments are recognised as lease liabilities in
the statement of financial position in accordance with the accounting policies as set out
in note 2.5(a) and the details regarding the Fund's future lease payments are disclosed in

note 9(b).

23.CEAERBE=2

EHE+—E¢

3
ERMIBE] - FE

BNREEE

ZF POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
7& STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED

BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Eizﬁﬁﬁ‘“iﬁz%%uﬂza TERMASCRMZRER - EREE - ZFER] - ik

ARRERE—ZF %

FZA=T—BLEFERRER » INEB AT T RK T IEAT RN

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments, new standards and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 March 2020 and which have not been early adopted in these financial statements.

ETIMRFER  FENMBBEBRRABRBASELNRZEETIHE - £oNERE

RNZFIER] RN

BERAKA]

EEUYBHRREEATE -

The Fund is in the process of making an assessment of the expected impact of these
amendments, new standards and interpretations in the period of initial application. So far
it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the

financial statements.
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B4 1
ANNEX |

(a) 2019/20 F E R 5 &%
PERFORMANCE PLEDGES 2019/20

ERKRR
i it (GED RIGIZE
(ZERRBIZE WBESLL) ®D
MBD) Actual
RIEEE Performance Performance
Service Standard Target (% meeting
TER (% meeting service
BR 7 38 5B Working 9$& service standard)
Service Type Day(s) Minutes  standard) (See Note 1)

1. PHIE L h SCEE R 15 (a+b) 92 85.3

Registration of land documents

(a) BB NEEZRBELAMOXEERN (@) 11
T E R D AR
From receipt of an instrument to
updating the land register with the
registered instrument®ee Note 2 and

(b) TR R EEREFWIEEFAMAXE  (b) 4
KB R A+ D
Completion of imaging and return
of the registered instrument to the
|Odg|ng party(See Note 2)

2. EENVER T HELH 15 97 97.3

Counter search of land registers

3. Rt AR BREERL
Supply of imaged copies of land
records
(a) EHE (7 FEX
Over the counter
(iy TEEKER] 15 97 98
Without oversized plans
(ii) PR3 38 KB A 5 97 100
With oversized plans

(b)ZEBH LR LT B
Order via online services
(i) %55 <8H
Collection in person
o TEEEEEER 1 97 100
Without coloured plans
o [KEEAEER 3 97 100
With coloured plans
o M AEER| 5 97 100
With oversized plans
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B4 | ANNEX |

BRRE
RBERE  CEIRBRE
(ZFIRBGERE ADL) &Y
BB D) Actual
i5Ey 2R Performance Performance
Service Standard Target (% meeting
TYEXR (% meeting service
PR %% %8 5 Working  7$% service standard)
Service Type Day(s) Minutes standard) e i )
(ii) B2 S B FIE R FBAR
Delivery by post or courier
o TEEEEAR
Without coloured plans
- TF6RATETIE 1 97 100
Orders placed before 6 pm
- THeREHIEEHRS -2 2 97 100
HA kAR REE B
Orders placed after 6 pm
or on Saturdays, Sundays &
public holidays
o fffiEEaEE R 3 97 100
With coloured plans
o [ifiE@AER 5 97 100
With oversized plans
4, REITBLHFRER
Supply of certified copies of land
records
(a) £ 1BV HFE
Over the counter
(i) & s 35 97 99.3
Land registers
(i) TEBAE R R B IR &I A 35 97 98.9
Imaged copies without oversized
plans
(iii) Pf 322 368 X B 1) ) =2 £ BR 38 Bl AR 5 97 97.8

Imaged copies with oversized
plans
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BRRE
REEERE  CEIRBGRLE
CERRRBIZE BEDH) &Y
B DL) Actual
iy 2R Performance Performance
Service Standard Target (% meeting
TER (% meeting service
PR %% %8 B Working  7$# service standard)
Service Type Day(s) Minutes standard) (e i 1)
(b):BEBALIRFEETIE
Order via online services
(i) %25 <EH
Collection in person
o THEECAH 1 97 100
Land registers
o TBREIEEIN
Imaged copies
- TEBEKNEAR 3 97 100
Without oversized plans
- HEEAE A 5 97 95
With oversized plans
(ii) B ZF Sk EE R RIXRIE
Delivery by post or courier
o T EFCM
Land registers
- THeRAIETHE 1 97 100
Orders placed before 6 pm
- TFeREIEEHN - 2 97 100
EHARARBRIE
Orders placed after 6 pm
or on Saturdays, Sundays &
public holidays
o NEBABRINZEREIERIAR 3 97 100
Imaged copies without oversized
plans
o [fHEBAERINZEREEEAR 5 97 99.3
Imaged copies with oversized
plans
5. HEEMBERR
Sale of Memorial Day Book (MDB)
(a) HBIT MM EBFHRFE 2 98 100
Approval of MDB applications
(b) FEEMFE B HmEFHESR 1 98 100

Delivery of MDB data files
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BRRE
BREEERE  CEIRBGIRLE
(ZERRBZE B L) &Y
BB D) Actual
i5Ey 2R Performance Performance
Service Standard Target (% meeting
T{EXR (% meeting service
PR %% %8 5 Working  7$% service standard)
Service Type Day(s) Minutes standard) (See Note 1)
6. SHERBEIMB/EAR
Sale of Monthly Memorial
Information on Mortgage
Transactions (MMIM)
(a) HEBIIRIBEM R E AW B R 2 98 100
Approval of MMIM applications
(b) BB EMEE A HEFHESR 4 98 100
Delivery of MMIM data files
7. EFEARE
Telephone enquiry services
(a) AR BT WEIE S840 88 94 99.3
EIR
Voice mail left during office hours Return calls within
40 minutes after
receiving the voice
mail
(b) 3EM AW EIE T T—EIEXTE L 94 100
1085 AT A&
Voice mail left after office hours Return calls before
10 am on the next
working day
8. &RT L B M & K
Amendment of registered data
(@ — &A= (AREFMHEEZEHELE 3 94 94.2
T b &)
Simple cases (i.e. Rectification of
land registers based on Memorial
information)
(b) EFEME S 10 93 91

Complicated cases
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{E3)
BYEE  GEIRBEE
(EEIRWBIZE MEHL) E)

MBADL) Actual
PRAEEE Performance Performance
Service Standard Target (% meeting
TER (% meeting service
PR %% %8 B Working  7$# service standard)
Service Type Day(s) Minutes standard) (Gt Mot 1)
9. AEXRMNEMMP LML ERETM 16 (a+b) 92 87.5

Registration of withheld

instruments redelivered for

registration

(a) BB BRMNEMAOPIEFMXERE (a) 12
BIEE M A X E B #EA e
fit : A
From receipt of a withheld instrument
redelivered for registration to
updating the land register with the
registered instrument; and

(b) TR EREERFIIEEZMAOIXE (b) 4
KA R A+
Completion of imaging and return
of the registered instrument to the
lodging party

10. XXV REE RS
Owners’ corporation services
(a) IR R T 37 SR B REM 30 90 100
Registration of owners’
corporationssee Note 3)

(b) 3R 7 ZEB 40 8 Bl AN 30 90 100
Supply of copies of owners’
corporation records
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L E3]
BMEE  CERRBEE
(EEIRIGIZE MHESL) &)

MmBESL) Actual
RIEEE Performance Performance
Service Standard Target (% meeting
TYEXR (% meeting service
PR %% %8 5 Working  7$% service standard)
Service Type Day(s) Minutes  standard) (see Note 1)

N.EEES KRR
Handling of suggestions/complaints 7~ iz & £ Ui 21 i :% - -

FEFEH T RA
EE' - MR F e
EERR A EE
B -hehbTOH
[E7& -

Replies to suggestions
or complaints will
be sent within 10
calendar days of
their receipt. If this
is not possible, an
interim reply will
be sent within this
period.

21 RRE2019ERESHRALRBARNER - 20202 A3BE3 B31 BAERAITIELE MEAFAREN R HRE - E5
HENERRBRRAMIEIZE -

Note 1: The actual performance of individual items was affected given that public services were provided on a limited scale under
the special work arrangement from 3 February 2020 to 31 March 2020 to reduce the risk of the spread of COVID-19 in
the community

fE2 0 PEREEMERRRT LE R XE

Note 2: Excluding complicated cases and instruments withheld from registration

3 TEREEMERSHEZIREM INEAX R R E

Note 3: Excluding complicated cases and applications that require further supporting documents for processing
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(b) 2020/21FE R AL (X HE 520205481 H#E)
PERFORMANCE PLEDGES 2020/21 (WITH EFFECT FROM 1 APRIL 2020)

AR5 51
(ED| AR BARAE
WA D)
FRIG R ZE Performance
Service Standard Target
PR 7% %8 5 TYEXR HiE (% meeting
Service Type Working Day(s) Minutes service standard)
1. BRI £ it SO 15 (a+b) 92
Registration of land documents
(@ BHKIIXEEREEFMAIXEEH LM (@) 11
EraofED s Uk
From receipt of an instrument to updating
the land register with the registered
instrumentsee Note V- gnd
(b)FTER T EEREEFWIEEFMONEXBR (b) 4
2 A D
Completion of imaging and return of
the registered instrument to the lodging
party/see Nete 1)
2. EEUER LB H 15 97
Counter search of land registers
3. RET AR BREERR
Supply of imaged copies of land records
(a) E1B FEE
Over the counter
(iy NEBAEAR 15 97
Without oversized plans
(i) M2 3@ AR E Al 5 97
With oversized plans
(b) BB LR ETHE
Order via online services
(i) # 5 <EE
Collection in person
o TEEBEER 1 97
Without coloured plans
o [ffiEEaEE R 3 97
With coloured plans
o [ifEBAE R 5 97

With oversized plans
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RIS 51
CGERRBARE
WAL
IRIE IR Performance
Service Standard Target
PR 7% %8 5 THER niE (% meeting
Service Type Working Day(s) Minutes service standard)

(ii) FEF KM EE LR FIXRIE
Delivery by post or courier
o TEEEEEA
Without coloured plans
- TF6RFATET IS 1 97
Orders placed before 6 pm

- NFeRENEESN  EHAR 2 97
NIRRT
Orders placed after 6 pm or on
Saturdays, Sundays & public
holidays
o MxEEAEE A 3 97
With coloured plans
o MHEBAER 5 97
With oversized plans
4. R HLBEIAFTE
Supply of certified copies of land records
(a) E1B (U HHEE
Over the counter
(i) THE A 35 97
Land registers
(i) TEBAE RN EREIE BN 35 97
Imaged copies without oversized plans
(iii) 38 38 K Bl Al Y 5215 BR 32 Bl AN 5 97

Imaged copies with oversized plans

(b)ZEBHY L IREETiE
Order via online services
(i) HRH
Collection in person
o THIEFCM 1 97
Land registers
o TEBRERIEEIAKN

Imaged copies

- FEAAEE 3 97
Without oversized plans
- HMHEBEARER 5 97

With oversized plans
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Service Type

R REE

B4 | ANNEX |

R EE
(ERIRBIZAE
MBEDL)
Performance

Service Standard Target

TEXR
Working Day(s)

08 (% meeting
Minutes service standard)

(ii) FEF KM EIE R FIXRIE
Delivery by post or courier

T & EE R

Land registers

TF6RFAIR] BB

Orders placed before 6 pm
THeRBk LM  EHAR
NIRRT R

Orders placed after 6 pm or on
Saturdays, Sundays & public
holidays

PEBAE R R 5R BRI Bl A
Imaged copies without oversized
plans

fit A B R AR IR &8l
Imaged copies with oversized plans

5. HEEMBERR
Sale of Memorial Day Book (MDB)
(a) BB M E B S5 B 5E
Approval of MDB applications

(b) ZEFMAHE B FERER
Delivery of MDB data files

. HERBEMBEEARR

Sale of Monthly Memorial Information on

Mortgage Transactions (MMIM)
(a) #LBIL B MM E AFRRE
Approval of MMIM applications

(b) KRBT M E A ERHER
Delivery of MMIM data files

97

97

97

97

98

98

98

98
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RIS 51
GERIRBGIRE
WAL
PR 7% 1R 25 Performance
Service Standard Target
PR %% %8 5 THER niE (% meeting
Service Type Working Day(s) Minutes service standard)
7. EREHRE
Telephone enquiry services
(@) BAKRRHWRE S WEIE S840 EARITE 94

Voice mail left during office hours

Return calls within 40 minutes
after receiving the voice mail

(b) FEM AR R EIRE = T—EI{ERF L10KFIEE 94
Voice mail left after office hours Return calls before 10 am on the
next working day
8. BT L &M E R
Amendment of registered data
(@) — AR BIBREIMBEEEHE ELHE 3 94
o)
Simple Cases (i.e. Rectification of land
registers based on Memorial information)
(b) EREEZ= 10 93
Complicated Cases
9. ABXEMA A LE M E PR TR 16 (a+b) 92

Registration of withheld instruments

redelivered for registration

(a) BB B R FEMEF IEFM X EZRE
ERMEXEEMEELMERLM AR
From receipt of a withheld instrument
redelivered for registration to updating
the land register with the registered
instrument; and

b) TR EREREREFIIEEFTMAXEZXE
REANE
Completion of imaging and return of the
registered instrument to the lodging party

(b) 4
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Service Type

P 7 15 22
Service Standard
THEX 88
Working Day(s) Minutes

B4 | ANNEX |

R EE
(ERIRBIZAE
MBEDL)
Performance
Target
(% meeting
service standard)

10. XXV REEBRH
Owners’ corporation services
(a) P13 £ ST 2R E I 2

30

Registration of owners’ corporations(see Note 2)

(b) IR EE T REZE LRI
Supply of copies of owners’ corporation
records

MEBES RF

Handling of suggestions/complaints

1 TEEEMEARRES EERNXE

30

REgrl B ERsRFENT
RAEE - MR A e ERH
NHBIEE - 18R TUTEE -
Replies to suggestions or complaints
will be sent within 10 calendar
days of their receipt. If this is not
possible, an interim reply will be
sent within this period.

Note 1: Excluding complicated cases and instruments withheld from registration

2 T EEEMERSFEEIREMINFEAX R R E

90

90

Note 2: Excluding complicated cases and applications that require further supporting documents for processing

¥ ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

137



138

B 11
ANNEX II

(a) 2019/20 FE L HIAMEMSEREESESE
MEMBERSHIP OF THE LAND REGISTRY JOINT STANDING
COMMITTEE 2019/20

X & Chairperson

T HFE R REBRLZ L Ms Doris CHEUNG Mei-chu
The Land Registry

Z & Members

TR A RBER L Mrs Amy FONG NG Suk-yee
The Land Registry SIS S A& Mr Joseph HUI Kwok-hung
ESRL+ Ms Venelie POON Suet-chung
(AR B2019F4 ) (With effect from April 2019)
R Ms Rose TO Yeung-mui
(BtZ£20194F44) (Until April 2019)
BAEME SREH A Ms Debbie CHEUNG Fong
The Law Society of Hong Kong  (Z£X(HEZ2020F2 H) (With effect from February 2020)
AR Ms Emily LAM Yuet-ming
BEBLE Mr Billy MA Wah-yan
(BZ2020E24) (Until February 2020)
E Ms Sylvia SIU Wing-yee
5B M4 Mr Terry YEUNG Po-lam

MWE Secretary

T E [RIZ8#HEE Mr Isaac YUEN Wai-chuen
The Land Registry

(b) 2019/20 FEL HFMEFFBE/NE (REHE) TE
MEMBERSHIP OF THE LAND REGISTRY CUSTOMER LIAISON
GROUP (PRIVATE SECTOR) 2019/20

F & Chairperson

TR HRREZ T Mrs Amy FONG NG Suk-yee
The Land Registry

Z B Members

BEAEMAE BT A Mr Sammy CHOI Tze-kit
Hong Kong Institute of Certified ZE/&EZESA4E Mr Thomas LEE Ho-yiu

Public Accountants \mERBELE Mr Edmund WONG Chun-sek
BEAMERERES PERAZAZZ L+ Ms SZE Ming-yu

Hong Kong Real Estate Agencies
General Association

EAMEREBEXHEARAR FMEEE Mr Anthony KWOK Chong
Society of Hong Kong Real Estate
Agents Limited
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(b) 2019/20 FE+EMEF P& /N E (REMKE) T8 @w)

MEMBERSHIP OF THE LAND REGISTRY CUSTOMER LIAISON
GROUP (PR'VATE SECTOR) 2019/20 (continued)

BERRITRE
The Hong Kong Association of
Banks

EEREMEE
The Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors

T A
The Land Registry

BB AT
The Law Society of Hong Kong

MWE Secretary

T EE R
The Land Registry

pRIEZ 2+
B+
REERE
EERKGE

MRIZERSE A
WEREBFLT

ERFYLL

REDR 2 T

BIEE L

Ms Gigi CHAN Wai-chi
Ms Christine LO Wing-yun
Mr Andy NG Hak-chung
Mr Philip YIP Chi-shing

Mr Alexander LAM Tsan-wing
Dr Conrad TANG Hong-wai

Ms Emily FOK Wai-kan
Mrs LAM TSE Shuk-yee
Miss Kathy LAU Yun-ha

(A HRB2019F 12 F) (With effect from December 2019)

REWE L
FRERL
BRI L

(LB 5201944 )

TRIERE
EIER ST
EERL L

(L2 HEB2019F4 5 )

VS ZLis3 qun

(B ZE2019F45)

IR e

(Bt ZE2019F45)

i $57 % 7t A
RIEREE

EEZELZT
T xf/ﬁi
BRZ A
PSS /G
MR L
REHTE

gL RL+

Ms Alice LEUNG Wai-han
Miss Fion LI Fong-kwan

Mr Andrew MAK Chun-wai
(With effect from April 2019)
Mr PANG Ka-fai

Mr Kenneth POON Fai-yiu
Ms Venelie POON Suet-chung
(With effect from April 2019)
Ms Rose TO Yeung-mui
(Until April 2019)

Ms Ada TSE Siu-hing

(Until April 2019)

Mr Francis WAN

Mr Isaac YUEN Wai-chuen

Ms AU Kin-man

Ms Stella AU Man-chun

Mr Alson CHAI

Ms Doreen KONG Yuk-foon
Ms LAM Man-yee

Mr LEONG Chi-wai

Ms Eva LAU Siu-man
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(c) 2019/20 FELHFAMEFFPBE NE (A EHEB) ZTE
MEMBERSHIP OF THE LAND REGISTRY CUSTOMER LIAISON
GROUP (PUBLIC SECTOR) 2019/20

F & Chairperson

T o EF B A RBER L Mrs Amy FONG NG Suk-yee
The Land Registry

Z & Members

AEBAEESE sREU(E S Mr CHEUNG Kwok-wai
Agriculture, Fisheries and
Conservation Department

EFE EBEL T Miss Stephanie AU Yuen-ling
Buildings Department

5650 SRR T4 Mr CHEUNG Tai-on
Customs and Excise Department

A SRIRIR AL Miss Charlene CHEUNG Chung-ling
Department of Justice whig e L+ Ms Mandy YIU Lai-sim
IRIBIREE BN Mr Herrick HO Yu-wang
Environmental Protection

Department

RYIREELEE et Ms Ann MUl Ching-man

Food and Environmental Hygiene

Department

HNERE EEELL Ms Kathy FOK Po-wa

Government Property Agency

EREGHEE = At Ms Joey WONG Yuet-ngo
Home Affairs Department

EEEEHE PREEIEZ L+ Ms Fanny CHAN Lai-kuen
Hong Kong Housing Society

BRBERRE EMAT Ms Joanna LEE Tak-ching
Hong Kong Police Force

EEZE BRIZRK L& Mr CHAN Wai-seng
Housing Department JE ez Bk o A Mr CHOW Kim-seng
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(c) 2019/20FE+FMEFFHEZ/NE (R EME) T8 @w)

MEMBERSHIP OF THE LAND REGISTRY CUSTOMER LIAISON

GROUP (PUBL'C SECTOR) 2019/20 (continued)

BRIMAZE
Independent Commission
Against Corruption

PR E

Inland Revenue Department

I AEE

Lands Department

WEEEE

Official Receiver’s Office

HREIE

Planning Department

EMPEEES

Rating and Valuation Department

T AR
The Land Registry

MWE Secretary

T s R
The Land Registry

FRERE
FaERREL

RERIEE

L+

&
2

[REJE L

i

Zt

W
s
&

5 YR B ST £

ERYLE

MREDRFE 22 T

BIBER L

Ms Anita MA Fung-lan
Mr Paul WONG Shun-chung

Mr CHU Chi-keung

Ms Judith TSANG Lai-wah

Miss Rita CHAN Po-mei

Miss Alice LIU Yee-chun

Mr Calvin AU Chun-yiu

Ms Emily FOK Wai-kan
Mrs LAM TSE Shuk-yee
Miss Kathy LAU Yun-ha

(L FRIAB2019F 12 F) (With effect from December 2019)

REMEZ L
FRERL
BIRBUTE

(£ HEB2019F44)

TRESEL
AmERZ L

(L2 HEAB2019F4 5 )

VS ZLisE S

(Bt ZE2019F44)

A DI 2z +

(B ZE2019F45)

i $57 B8 55 £
RIEREE

Ms Alice LEUNG Wai-han
Miss Fion LI Fong-kwan

Mr Andrew MAK Chun-wai
(With effect from April 2019)
Mr PANG Ka-fai

Mr Kenneth POON Fai-yiu
Ms Venelie POON Suet-chung
(With effect from April 2019)
Ms Rose TO Yeung-mui
(Until April 2019)

Ms Ada TSE Siu-hing

(Until April 2019)

Mr Francis WAN

Mr Isaac YUEN Wai-chuen

Ms Eva LAU Siu-man
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(d) 2019/20 F E L X EFRH) BEEZEFZE
MEMBERSHIP OF THE LAND TITLES ORDINANCE STEERING
COMMITTEE 2019/20

F & Chairperson

T E REWRLZ L Ms Doris CHEUNG Mei-chu
The Land Registry

Z & Members

HEEZES CES e Ms Terese AU-YEUNG Kar-wai
Consumer Council

I A] HIASEAE Mr Clifford Joseph TAVARES
Department of Justice

BRB BRERLE Mr Maurice LOO Kam-wah
Development Bureau

HWERIBEER RiEBER L Ms Juliet LEUNG Tak-lai
Estate Agents Authority

AP ER o NE= DS Mr Alfred LAM Kwok-cheong
Heung Yee Kuk New Territories

BERERBEFESERAA kA ZER L Ms Feliciana CHEUNG Siu-wai
Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation

Limited

HRARE el k-5 Mr Alan FONG Kim-fung

Lands Department

142 BELHFMEZEES THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG



B4 11 ANNEX I

(d) 2019/20 F E( L i R ERF) BEEZEFEE W)

MEMBERSHIP OF THE LAND TITLES ORDINANCE STEERING
COMMITTEE 2019/20 (continued)

BEBRITAE
The Hong Kong Association of
Banks

fmub i
The Land Registry

BEEMmE
The Law Society of Hong Kong

BAMERREE
The Real Estate Developers
Association of Hong Kong

MWE Secretary

T EE R
The Land Registry

(2019F6 AZ8A4)
BER LA

(Bt Z2019F5 4 )
RS+

(£ HRA2019F9 4 )

HRAEZ LT
PR B S A

EimtEat

REEREE

g
i
Xl
pax
H_

Mr Eric FAN Kwong-wah
(From June to August 2019)
Mr Mathew MAK Kit-leung
(Until May 2019)

Ms Mona SENGUPTA

(With effect from September
2019)

Mrs Amy FONG NG Suk-yee
Mr Joseph HUI Kwok-hung

Ms Lilian CHIANG Sui-fook

Mr Louis LOONG Hon-biu

Miss Shirley KO Sin-man
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(e) 2019/20 FE L EEEH ) RN EESEE
MEMBERSHIP OF THE LAND TITLES ORDINANCE REVIEW
COMMITTEE 2019/20

F & Chairperson

T+ ST A Mr Joseph HUI Kwok-hung
The Land Registry

Z & Members

EIA] sk {3 22 Miss Joyce CHAN Pui-shan

Department of Justice FFITRE L Ms Frances HUI Hang-ka
MRBH L+ Ms Francoise LAM See-man

BRB BHERLLT Ms Jasmine CHOI Suet-yung

Development Bureau hEEEL+ Ms Nettie NG Kai-ting

BAREMAE BXE LA Mr Malcolm MERRY

Hong Kong Bar Association FBMm it Ms Sara TONG

I EE el k-5 Mr Alan FONG Kim-fung

CEEBRARBTESE) BMELZ L Ms Katrina WONG Pui-man

Lands Department
(Legal Advisory and
Conveyancing Office)

T EE R I RREZ L Mrs Amy FONG NG Suk-yee
The Land Registry BEEL T Ms Queenie KIU Mei-kam
BEEME BEmpestsE Mr Peter AHERNE
The Law Society of Hong Kong  sR#5 &+t Ms Debbie CHEUNG Fong
(A HEB20199F6 H) (With effect from June 2019)
TEELZ T Ms Doreen KONG Yuk-foon
B EL A Mr Andy NGAN On-tak
(B 2201996 4) (Until June 2019)
B ESE Mr Raymond WONG Man-wa

MWE Secretary

T EE R FEERL Ms Shirley LEE Po-kwan
The Land Registry
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